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July 31, 2014 

 

Comments  

Entergy Waterways License Application Number W14-4157  

for Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station, Plymouth, Massachusetts 

Submitted by:  

Pine duBois, Executive Director Jones River Watershed Association 

55 Landing Road, Kingston, MA 02364  

Background 

Jones River Watershed Association (JRWA), with Jones River Landing 
Environmental Heritage Center (Jones River Landing) owns riparian land along the 
Jones River in Kingston, MA, including land along the boundary of the Cape Cod Bay 
Ocean Sanctuary.  The riparian land belonging to JRWA and Jones River Landing and 
the natural resources and ecosystem of that riparian land is affected by operations at 
Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station (Pilgrim).  

JRWA and its executive director Pine duBois (duBois) in her personal capacity 
work to protect resources in the South Coastal Watershed and Cape Cod Bay.  Several 
fish species migrating to/from the Jones River to Cape Cod Bay are routinely impinged 
and entrained in the cooling water intake structure (CWIS) at Pilgrim.  The actions of 
Entergy Nuclear Generation Co. and the project applicant Entergy Nuclear Operations, 
Inc. (collectively, Entergy) harm the rights of JRWA, its members, and its executive 
director in her personal capacity and as a resident of the Commonwealth, in the public 
tidelands. The actions described in Entergy’s Waterways License Application Number 
W14-4157 (the “Application” or the “Project”) will significantly interfere with these 
rights.   

On June 2, 2014, duBois requested that the Massachusetts Department of 
Environmental Protection (DEP) provide her with timely notice of Entergy’s 
Application.  DEP failed to provide duBois with the notice requested, citing an 
“inadvertent oversight.”  Email, Philip Weinberg, Regional Director, MassDEP-
Southeast Regional Office, to Meg Sheehan, JRWA Volunteer, dated July 16, 2014.  
Due to this oversight, DEP provided duBois until July 31, 2014 to submit comments on 
the Application. 

These comments are in addition to the comments dated July 21, 2014, to which 
duBois is a signatory.  The comments posted at:  
http://www.capecodbaywatch.org/2014/07/Opportunity-for-public-comments-on-
Entergy%27s-Use-of-Public-Land   The July 21, 2014 comments are incorporated by 
reference herein. 
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A copy of this letter is being sent to the MEPA office with a request for MEPA 
review. 

 
I.  Entergy is violating and continues to violate the existing Waterways Licenses 
and the Project will cause additional violations 
 

Beginning in 1968, the Commonwealth issued Waterways licenses to Entergy’s 
predecessor, Boston Edison Co., to use, fill and build structures on public tidelands in 
Plymouth in order to construct and operate Pilgrim. None of these licenses has a 
termination date.  The common understanding at the time was that Pilgrim would be 
retired at the end of its design life in 2012, if not before.   

 
The prior Waterways licenses for the use, fill, and construction of structures at 

Pilgrim state that they “shall involve no discharge of sewage or other polluting matter 
into the adjacent tidelands except in strict conformity” with state and local laws.  These 
conditions bind Entergy to this day.  In its operation of Pilgrim, Entergy has violated, 
and continues to violate the existing waterways licenses by discharging polluting matter, 
including radionuclides, into the adjacent tidelands.  This discharge is not in “strict 
conformity” with state and local laws.  Similarly, the discharge of radiologically 
contaminated cooling water via the Project will also violate the existing Waterways 
licenses.  Pilgrim’s operations, and hence the need for the “emergency Fukushima fix” 
that is the subject of the Application is made possible only by the existing licenses, and 
the Project result in additional pollution of Cape Cod Bay. 

 
The prior licenses that are relevant to the Application are first, License No. 5504, 

dated March 13, 1969 (1969 License), which authorized Boston Edison “to construct an 
intake structure, breakwaters and to dredge intake and discharge channels in Cape Cod 
Bay, at its property in the town of Plymouth….” The work was to comply with three 
sheets of plans attached thereto.  The 1969 License states, in pertinent part: 
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Second, License No. 5784, dated February 25, 1971 (1971 License) was in 

response to Boston Edison’s application for a license “to maintain intake structures and 
breakwaters in Cape Cod Bay….” and to maintain existing intake structures, dredging 
and break-waters….in conformity with the accompanying plan No. 5784. The 1971 
License says, 

 
 

 
continues on following page….. 
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Third, Waterways License No. 399 was issued on October 21, 1977 (1977 

License) and relates to the construction of another reactor unit at the site, Pilgrim II, 
which was cancelled.  License 399 appears to be void.   

 
Pursuant to the 1969 and 1971 Licenses (the existing licenses), Pilgrim has used 

the tidelands for its operations, including taking in about a half billion gallons a day of 
sea water, causing destruction of marine life by impingement and entrainment, and 
discharging pollution through and over the tidelands, causing destruction of marine 
habitat in the public tidelands.  See, e.g., http://www.capecodbaywatch.org/pollution/ 

 
The destruction of marine life, including near shore ecosystems, by nuclear 

power stations using a CWIS like Pilgrim’s is well documented.  See, e.g., “Licensed to 
Kill: How the nuclear power industry endangered marine wildlife and ocean habitat to 
save money,” published by Nuclear Information Resources Service, available at: 
www.nirs.org/reactorwatch/licensedtokill/LiscencedtoKill.pdf 
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II. Entergy hinders state water quality standards and continues to violate its 
expired NPDES permit resulting in damage to invaluable public trust resources  

 Egregiously, in an attempt to prevent Massachusetts from regulating Pilgrim’s 
CWIS, Entergy sued DEP to block application of state water quality regulations at 
Pilgrim.  Entergy lost.  Entergy v. Mass DEP, 459 Mass. 319 (2011). The Massachusetts 
Supreme Judicial Court stated in its opinion:  “The environmental impact of these 
systems is staggering…destabilizing wildlife populations in the surrounding ecosystem.  
In areas with a designated use as a aquatic habitat (such as Cape Cod Bay where 
Pilgrim’s CWIS operates), therefore, CWIS hinder the attainment of water quality 
standards.”  This court finding is proof that Entergy’s operation of the CWIS, made 
possible by the 1969 and 1971 Licenses “involves the discharge of polluting matter” and 
is not in conformity with state regulations. DEP cannot ignore the fact that Pilgrim’s 
discharges are “destabilizing wildlife populations in the surrounding ecosystem”, Energy 
v. DEP, supra, and causing a significant interference with public rights in the tidelands. 

 MassDEP cannot pretend that Entergy’s use of the tidelands to discharge 
thermally polluted water contaminated with radionuclides and pollutants is in any way 
compliant with state laws.  As DEP well knows, Pilgrim’s Clean Water Act NPDES 
permit expired on April 29th, 1996.  For nearly 20 years, Pilgrim has been operating 
under an expired permit, improperly “administratively extended” (and even transferred) 
by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency.  This unwarranted and outrageous delay 
by EPA and DEP in enforcing the state and federal clean water laws is unacceptable.   

Both DEP and EPA continue to allow Entergy to ignore perhaps the most 
important condition of the NPDES – a condition that is aimed at ensuring that Pilgrim’s 
CWIS adapts to the changing environment and protects marine species: that permit 
condition is the one requiring oversight of Pilgrim by the Pilgrim Administrative 
Technical Committee (PATC).  The PATC was disbanded, coincidentally or not, when 
Entergy purchased Pilgrim from Boston Edison.  The absence of the PATC’s oversight 
and analysis of Pilgrim’s negative impacts on Cape Cod Bay renders the current NPDES 
in violation of state and federal laws.   

 On October 5, 2012, in the face of the failure by DEP and EPA to perform their 
statutory duties and in an effort to address the “staggering” environmental impacts of 
Pilgrim’s outdated CWIS and use of Cape Cod Bay as a dumping ground for its 
industrial waste, the public interest group EcoLaw issued a Notice of Intent to 
commence an Clean Water Act citizen suit on behalf of three Massachusetts citizens (the 
“NOI”).1   Entergy’s pollution of Cape Cod Bay continues to this day.  See, e.g., Entergy 
Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR), June 2014, Exhibit B hereto.   

While Entergy will claim in some of its monitoring reports that there are “no 
exceedences” of the expired 1991(amend 1994) NPDES permit, the permit limits are 

                                                
 
 
1 A copy of the NOI is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
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based on 1970s data and are outdated and meaningless.  Moreover, Pilgrim has 
numerous uncontrolled and unpermitted leaks of pollutants and radioactive nuclides to 
the environment. For example, the June 2014 DMR documents the ongoing leak 
“discovered earlier this year” of contaminated industrial wastewater containing 
tolytriazole and sodium nitrate.  Entergy’s solution to this problem is merely to dilute 
the contaminated water and discharge it to the tidelands through the discharge canal 
that was built under the existing Waterways licenses.  In June, 2014, Entergy’s thermal 
backwash of Pilgrim’s cooling water system resulted in thermal pollution with water 
temperatures as high as 108.1 F.  June DMR, page 1. 

Neither the existing Waterways licenses nor the Clean Water Act’s National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System program permits are intended as tools for EPA 
and DEP to give Entergy, a private user, a permanent right to pollute public trust 
resources including the tidelands, and use Cape Cod Bay as a dumping ground for 
industrial waste. The Clean Water Act’s opening provisions declared that NPDES 
permits to pollute waterways were not to be issued after 1985.  As the U.S. Senate 
Report accompanying the legislation explained, “[T]his legislation would clearly 
establish that no one has the right to pollute-that pollution continues because of 
technological limits, not because of any inherent rights to use the nation’s waterways for 
the purpose of disposing of wastes.”2 (emphasis supplied).  In refusing to address 
Pilgrim’s expired permit and outdated technology, EPA continues to ignore Congress’ 
express “no-pollution” goal.  Similarly, the 1969 and 1971 Waterways licenses were 
never intended to grant permanent rights to use the intake and discharge channels for the 
CWIS to dump pollution on public lands. 

Cape Cod Bay is a public resource of global significance. DEP’s failure to 
enforce state laws – independent of what EPA does or does not do -- and to eliminate 
Entergy’s pollution of Cape Cod Bay and attendant harm to the Bay’s ecosystem and 
wildlife amounts to a de facto privatization of this public resource at a great cost to the 
public’s natural resources.  

The scale of the damage to public trust resources for which Entergy and EPA are 
responsible is demonstrated in part by a report prepared for EPA Region I and The New 
England Interstate Water Pollution Control Commission in 2002.  (available at 
www.capecodbaywatch.org/Stratus Report) This report, by Stratus Consulting, is 
entitled “Habitat-Based Replacement Costs: An Ecological Valuation of the Benefits of 
Minimizing Impingement and Entrainment at the Cooling Water Intake Structure of the 
Pilgrim Nuclear Power Generating Station in Plymouth, Massachusetts.” (Stratus 
Report). The method used in the report “values natural resource losses based on the 
costs of ecological habitat-based restoration activities which are scaled to increase 
natural production as an offset to the I&E [impingement and entrainment by CWIS] 
losses.”  Report 3-3.  In other words, it describes the cost to replace the public trust 
resources that Entergy destroys with its outdated CWIS.   

                                                
2 Sen. Rpt. No. 92-414, 92 Cong. 1st Sess. 41 (1971), reprinted in 2 Envtl. Policy Div., Cong. Ref. Serv., A 
Legislative History of the Water Pollution Control Act Amendments at 1972, at 1460 (Sen. Pub. Works 
Comm. Print 1973); 1972 U.S. C.C.A.N. 3668, 3709. 
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Although the Stratus Report assessed only a portion of the habitat replacement 
costs, and therefore likely underestimated the cost of fully off-setting I&E losses, it is 
instructive and revealing as to the scale of the marine life destroyed by Entergy’s CWIS.  
For example, the report states that the total cost of restoring Atlantic Cod destroyed by 
Pilgrim is $35 million and the cost of restoring Winter Flounder is $46 million.3  These 
are only two of many species Entergy’s CWIS is destroying and has destroyed over the 
past 40 years.  Other habitat replacement costs could not be assessed by the report due to 
data gaps, time constraints and funding.  These include annual losses of 160 billion blue 
mussels and 460,000 fish comprising 13 species.  P. 4-85. Instead of acting swiftly in 
response to information such as this that shows the large scale of the destruction of 
marine species, EPA has allowed Entergy to continue to operate under its expired permit 
for almost 18 years.  

Making matters worse, Entergy continues to ignore and violate parts of the 
permit that were intended and expected to prevent this type of damage.  Beginning in 
2000, Entergy stopped cooperating with the (PATC), which was established by the 
permit to monitor and respond to negative impacts of the CWIS—especially 
impingement and entrainment. When Entergy assumed control of the Pilgrim operations 
it refused to participate, effectively abolishing the PATC that was a NPDES permit 
condition. 

 The natural resource damage caused by Entergy via the CWIS to tidelands and 
public trust resources results from activities conducted under the 1969 and 1971 
Waterways licenses.   

Under 310 CMR 9.26(1), DEP may revoke a Waterways license, unless 
otherwise provided by law, for non-compliance with the terms and conditions therein, 
including any change of use from that expressly authorized in said license or permit or, 
if no such statement was included, from that reasonably determined by the Department 
to be implicit therein.  Entergy is in blatant non-compliance with the terms and 
conditions of the Licenses prohibiting pollution that is not in accordance with law.   

In addition, under 310 CMR 9.26(2)(a)(2), all licenses issued prior to January 1, 
1984 are void if “there has been an unauthorized substantial change in use….”  Here, 
Entergy’s continued, significant, and unpermitted pollution is an unauthorized 
substantial change in use, especially given its change in production since it assumed 
operations and its uprated the energy output in 2004.  Further, the duration of the 
pollution-over 40 years with the ongoing cumulative impacts, including scouring of the 
sea floor in the tidelands area in front of Pilgrim, results in a further unauthorized 
substantial change in use.  

 

 

 

                                                
3 These are 2001 dollars, and do not account for inflation to the present date. 
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III.  The Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act, M.G.L. c. 30, §§ 61 through 62I 
(MEPA) require an ENF and Mandatory EIR 

Entergy’s proposal to pump an unquantified volume of sea water, for an 
unknown duration of time, from Cape Cod Bay, use the sea water to cool the nuclear 
reactor and spent fuel pool, and then dump it back out into the Bay,  meets numerous 
MEPA thresholds for a mandatory Environmental Impact Report. 

Under MEPA, the public is entitled to a meaningful opportunity to review the 
environmental impacts of the Project.  DEP is required to use all feasible means to avoid 
damage to the environment from the Project, or if such damage cannot be avoided, to 
minimize and mitigate the damage to the environment to the maximum extent 
practicable.  301 CMR 11.00 

Under 301 CMR 11.03(5)(a), an ENF and mandatory EIR are required because 
the Project is a“new discharge or expansion in discharge of any amount of sewage, 
industrial waste water or untreated storm water directly to an outstanding resource 
water.”  Cape Cod Bay is designated an outstanding resource water under the 
Massachusetts Water Quality Regulations.  The discharge of contaminated cooling water 
to the Bay that will result from the Project is a new discharge that is an expansion of and 
an addition to the ongoing discharge of industrial waste at Pilgrim.    

Entergy’s discharge of contaminated cooling water to Cape Cod Bay will result 
in the alternation of designated significant habitat, triggering MEPA under 301 
CMR11.03(2)(b).  CCB is significant habitat for a number of state and federally listed 
endangered and threatened species.  It is critical habitat for the endangered North 
Atlantic right whale. 

As stated in the July 21, 2014 comments, the Project is a new non-water 
dependent use.  As such project also triggers the MEPA threshold for a mandatory EIR 
under 301 CMR 11.03(a)(5)(“Provided that a Chapter 91 License is required, New non-
water dependent use or Expansion of an existing non-water dependent structure, 
provided the use or structure occupies one or more acres of waterways or tidelands.”) 
According to the Plymouth Conservation Commission Order of Conditions, the Project 
includes certain measures that are an attempt to improve security against a terrorist 
attack at Pilgrim.  The Order states, “The proposal here is to install a 15"x15" concrete 
apron at the base of the fence line to make tunneling under the fence more difficult. A 
trench will be excavated with a small machine and filled with concrete. The Applicant 
proposes to install ECB prior to the commencement of work and dispose of the 
excavated soil out side Conservation jurisdiction. The majority of this work will take 
place in areas that have been paved, but all of it in previously disturbed areas.”  This 
work falls within the threshold of 11.03(a)(5). 

 
Alternatively, the Secretary should conduct a fail-safe review under the MEPA 

regulations at 301 CMR 11.04. 
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IV.  Compliance with the state Clean Waters Act, and the federal Clean Water Act 

The proposed discharge of the contaminated cooling water from the Project 
requires a new joint NPDES permit under the federal Clean Water Act and a state 401 
Water Quality Certification to ensure that the state water quality standards are met. 

 

V.  The Project should require the review of CZM and Compliance with the Ocean 
Sanctuaries Act 132A (12A)  

The Ocean Sanctuaries Act provides: 

Section 12(B) where an “Existing discharge”, (is) a municipal, commercial or 
industrial discharge at the volume and locations authorized by the appropriate 
federal and state agencies on July fifteenth, nineteen hundred and seventy, in the 
case of the Cape Cod Ocean Sanctuary; [Pilgrim came on line in December 
1970] 

Section 13(b) The Cape Cod Bay Ocean Sanctuary is bounded and described as 
follows: That body of water known as Cape Cod Bay and lying southerly of the 
Bay Closing Line between Brant Rock in the Town of Marshfield and Race Point 
in the town of Provincetown as established on the aforementioned Marine 
Boundary Map of the Commonwealth, and lying seaward of the mean low-water 
line; meaning and intending to include: all of that water area and seabed lying in 
a southerly direction from the aforementioned closing line; all of Provincetown 
Harbor including portions which may be easterly or northerly of the 
aforementioned closing line, Wellfleet, Plymouth, and Barnstable Harbors; 
Plymouth, Kingston, and Duxbury Bays; and the Cape Cod Canal Northerly of 
the Bourne-Sandwich town boundary, and excluding the water area and seabed 
of the Cape Cod National Seashore as established by Act on Congress (1961, P.L. 
87-126). 

Section 14. All ocean sanctuaries as described in section thirteen shall be under 
the care, oversight and control of the office and shall be protected from any 
exploitation, development, or activity that would significantly alter or otherwise 
endanger the ecology or the appearance of the ocean, the seabed, or subsoil 
thereof, or the Cape Cod National Seashore. 

Section 15 Prohibited uses: (4) the dumping or discharge of commercial, 
municipal, domestic or industrial wastes; 

CZM should require a full review of the project, its effectiveness, and alternatives to 
ensure protection of the invaluable natural resources and habitats of the CCB Ocean 
Sanctuary. 
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VI.  The Findings and Recommendations of the National Academy of Sciences 
Report on Lessons Learned from Fukushima are directly applicable to the Project 
and should be considered by DEP  

The National Academy of Sciences Report entitled Lessons Learned from The 
Fukushima Nuclear Accident for Improving Safety at U.S. Nuclear Plants contains 
important information that should be considered by DEP in determining whether to issue 
the License.  The NAS report, available at 
http://www.nap.edu/catalog.php?record_id=18294 confirms that the Project will 
significantly interfere with the public’s rights in the tidelands.  

The Report makes the following points. 

A. Entergy has failed to incorporate current science about climate change and other 
risks into emergency planning 

The Report highlights that flooding is an issue when it comes to the 
implementation of emergency responses at Pilgrim, such as the actions proposed by the 
Application.  The Report states, 

“Personnel at the Fukushima Daiichi plant responded with courage and resilience 
during the accident in the face of harsh circumstances; their actions likely 
reduced the severity of the accident and the magnitude of offsite radioactive 
material releases. Several factors prevented plant personnel from achieving 
greater success—in particular averting reactor core damage—and 
contributed to the overall severity of the accident: 
1. Failure of the plant owner (Tokyo Electric Power Company) and the 
principal regulator (Nuclear and Industrial Safety Agency) to protect critical 
safety equipment at the plant from flooding in spite of mounting evidence 
that the plant’s current design basis for tsunamis was inadequate.” (emphasis 
supplied) 
  

The Report’s Findings include: 
 

“FINDING 3.1: The overarching lesson learned from the Fukushima Daiichi 
accident is that nuclear plant licensees and their regulators must actively seek out 
and act on new information about hazards that have the potential to affect the 
safety of nuclear plants. Specifically, 
1. Licensees and their regulators must continually seek out new scientific 
information about nuclear plant hazards and methodologies for estimating their 
magnitudes, frequencies, and potential impacts. 
2. Nuclear plant risk assessments must incorporate these new information and 
methodologies as they become available. 
3. Plant operators and regulators must take timely actions to implement 
countermeasures when such new information results in substantial changes to 
risk profiles at nuclear plants.” 
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It is incumbent on DEP to address, prepare for and adapt to our changing climate, 
if survival is in our interest. Sea Level Rise (SLR) is real in Cape Cod Bay—we know, 
because we experience this with every storm at high tide, with astronomical tides—with 
ordinary day-to-day life on the Jones River.  That Entergy refuses to consider and 
acknowledge SLR, is not an excuse for DEP to follow suit. Here, at Jones River Landing, 
a mere eight miles from Pilgrim Station, we experience flooding IN OUR BUILDINGS 
many times a year.  We are taking measures to raise floors to protect equipment.  We are 
a BOATYARD. We like water. We are not a nuclear generating station that can take out 
all of southeastern Massachusetts and beyond, with one power outage. It is essential that 
Entergy plan for the likely disasters at hand, and not offer a pretense for preparation.  
The Application fails to demonstrate that Entergy has done such planning for the Project. 

 B.  The Project fails to evaluate and assess extent of radiological contamination that 
will result. 

The NAS report identifies Pilgrim as a boiling water reactor similar in design to 
the reactors at Fukuhsima, Report Table 2.2, and hence at risk of a similar catastrophic 
release of radiologically contaminated materials to the environment.  Because 
Fukushima lost nearly all onsite AC and DC power, Report Finding 4.1, the nuclear 
reactors were “effectively isolated from their ultimate heat sink.”  This means the pumps 
did not work to bring in seawater to cool the reactor core. 

Under the emergency response in place at Fukushima, which essentially the same 
as what Entergy plans to do with the Project (i.e. pump in seawater and let it drain out to 
the environment) “Releases [of radiologically contaminated cooling water] to the ocean 
have continued to the present.’ Report § 6.1.  page 6-2.   

The Fukushima accident is causing “severe long-term health impacts.”  
“Of the approximately 150,000 people who were evacuated as a result of 

the accident still lived in shelters or temporary locations three years after the 
accident with continuing uncertainties about the future. The difficulties in 
evacuees’ daily lives, possible separation from family members, and loss of 
property and business or employment are further complicated by the fear of 
developing cancer from accident-related radiation exposures and the societal 
stigma resulting from those exposures. As with the Chernobyl accident, mental 
health effects, which include depression, anxiety, and posttraumatic symptoms, 
are considered to be the largest public health problem from the accident.” Report  
page 6-4; citations omitted. 

 
The Report also states: 
“The environmental and economic consequences of the accident are also severe. 
About 13,000 km2 of land (about the size of the U.S. state of Connecticut) are 
contaminated such that the average annual dose to occupants would exceed the 1 
mSv per year long-term cleanup goal (Chen and Tenforde, 2012). Cleanup of 
such a large area is proving to be challenging due to the limited effectiveness of 
decontamination techniques (Yasutaka et al., 2013), lack of short or long-term 
plans for disposal of the radioactive waste created by cleanup, and ongoing 
negotiations among stakeholders about acceptable radiation dose criteria for 
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resettlement. The final determination of how much residential land will be off 
limits indefinitely has still not been made. Return of evacuated persons—
although a high priority of the Japanese government—remains an unresolved 
issue three years after the accident.” Report page 6-4 to 6.5. 

 
Under the Waterways regulations, DEP is required to consider health and safety 

impacts, as well as impacts to the environment as a result of the Project.  These NAS 
findings should be considered in determining the consequences of the use of the Project 
at Pilgrim.  The Project will allow Pilgrim to continue operating, instead of shutting 
down and putting the spent nuclear fuel into dry cask storage.  These health, safety, and 
environment impacts from use of the Project should be weighed against the alternative 
of shutting down Pilgrim4.  

 
In addition, the Report states that “about 80 percent of the radioactivity released 

from the Fukushima Daiichi plant was transported to the Pacific Ocean.” Report page 6-
13.  Entergy should be required to explain what percent of the radioactivity that would 
be released from Pilgrim, in a scenario involving use of the Project, would be 
transported to Cape Cod Bay.  The use of Cape Cod Bay for the ultimate “disposal” of 
the radioactivity from Pilgrim in the event of an emergency involving use of the Project 
should be weighed against other alternatives, including shutting down and dry cask 
storage. 
 

C. The Issues Raised in the NAS Report Show the Potential Damage and 
Interference with Tidelands Rights from the Project are Real 
 
The issues raised in these Comments on the Application are not hypothetical, 

remote or speculative.  Pilgrim uses the exact same type of GE Mark I Boiling Water 
reactor as Fukushima.  The Report questions whether Entergy, as operator of Pilgrim, is 
prepared to handle an emergency.  See, FINDING 6.2:  

“The committee did not have the time or resources to perform an in-depth 
examination of U.S. preparedness for severe nuclear accidents. Nevertheless, the 
accident raises the question of whether a severe nuclear accident such as occurred 
at the Fukushima Daiichi plant would challenge U.S. emergency response 
capabilities because of its severity, duration, and association with a regional-scale 
natural disaster. The natural disaster damaged critical infrastructure and diverted 
emergency response resources.”  Emphasis supplied. 

 
See also, “RECOMMENDATION 6.2A: The nuclear industry and 

organizations with emergency management responsibilities in the United States 
should assess their preparedness for severe nuclear accidents associated with 
offsite regional-scale disasters. Emergency response plans, including plans for 
communicating with affected populations, should be revised or supplemented as 
necessary to ensure that there are scalable and effective strategies, well-trained 
personnel, and adequate resources for responding to long-duration 

                                                
4 For a recent story on the next steps at Vermont Yankee, which is due to close in December, please see: 
http://www.reformer.com/localnews/ci_26233093/vy-emergency-planning-changes-detailed 
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accident/disaster scenarios….” 
 

The Project suffers from serious flaws that make it an ineffective method of 
dealing with a natural disaster that has the severity and duration of a Fukushima type 
disaster.  Entergy has not sufficiently explained the context and site dynamics that will 
impact its facility as well as its emergency preparedness.   

 
VII.  Failure to properly assess and consider climate change impacts 
 

The NAS released another report last week titled “Reducing Coastal Risks on the East 
and Gulf Coasts”.  In its leading summary paragraph it states:  
 

 “Hurricane- and coastal-storm-related economic losses have increased 
substantially over the past century, largely due to expanding population and 
development in the most susceptible coastal areas. Eight U.S. cities (Miami, the 
New York-Newark region, New Orleans, Tampa-St. Petersburg, Boston, 
Philadelphia, Virginia Beach, and Baltimore) rank among the world’s top 20 in 
terms of estimated potential average annual losses from coastal flooding. 
Hurricanes Sandy (2012) and Katrina (2005) recently raised awareness of this 
vulnerability. Climate change poses additional threats to coastal communities. 
Climate projections suggest possible increases in the strength and frequency of the 
most intense hurricanes, and sea-level rise will increase the likelihood of major 
flood events.” 
 

   One need to look only to the F2 tornado that touched down in Revere a few 
days ago, or last winter’s weather, and the increased flooding along the coast with 
northeast storms in the past few years that have caused permanent damage and closed 
coastal facilities as close to Pilgrim as a few miles up the shore. Emergency planning 
must be provided within a context, not just of marauders potential for excavating under 
the fence line—but for the more prevalent and potentially crippling fury of Nature’s 
storms that can uproot, entangle, mangle and prevent any approach to the sea. 
 

DEP is required to look at these issues, and the emerging science. It cannot issue 
the Waterways license Entergy has requested for Pilgrim in a vacuum as though the 
climate and world as we know it is not changing. The President of the United States and 
the Governor of Massachusetts and the people of the Commonwealth require that we 
“build Storm Smart Coasts”.  NOAA now provides a sea level rise viewer at 
http://www.csc.noaa.gov/slr/viewer/ .  Here you can see that a mere 2-foot rise will 
inundate the jetties intended to curb the nor’easters and hurricanes. But even this viewer 
relies on a quiescent sea, and Cape Cod Bay is not still during storms! There are 5, 10, 
20 and 30 foot waves on top of the storm surges here, in Pilgrim’s velocity zone. 
 
Other recent reports on this issue are noted in local media:  
“Northeast Hurricane Modeling Outdated” 
http://www.ecori.org/climate-change/2014/7/26/northeast-hurricane-modeling-
outdated.html 
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-“Severe Weather Warming for Southern New England” 
http://www.ecori.org/climate-change/2014/2/11/severe-weather-warning-for-
southern new-england.html 

- “Experts Say Expect More Rain and Flooding: http://www.ecori.org/climate-
change/2014/7/9/experts-say-expect-more-rain-and-flooding.html 
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“Rising seas and more intense storms are challenging southern New England’s 
shoreline, coastal homes and infrastructure.” 
http://www.ecori.org/climate-change/2014/1/14/erosion-happens-can-we-deal-with-
it.html 

 

VIII.  Failure to describe duration of impact on public’s rights 

Entergy fails to describe the duration and scope of the use of the tidelands for the 
Project.  It should be required to state with specificity:  

1. The planning time frame for this emergency response: For how long a period 
will the plan be used?  

2. What is the duration of time that they expect the interference with public 
rights to tidelands to continue-how long will they be pumping water out and 
using the tidelands for the project?  Hours? Days? Years? As at Fukushima?  

 

IX. Technical deficiencies in Project design 

In a July 1, 2008 submission to U.S. EPA under the Clean Water Act, § 308, 
Entergy stated that it could not use an array of wedge wire screen cylinders attached to 
the intake channel at Plymouth in order to reduce impingement and entrainment.  
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Entergy stated this was not feasible due to the potential for the dislodging of screens 
during ocean storms and its debris clogging the intake structure. For the same reasons, 
the buoys and screen and pulley system being proposed by Entergy, to be installed at 
MLW in the Application, is not feasible. 

Entergy should be required to provide an explanation of why its position is now 
that the buoys, screen, and pulley system proposed in the Application is feasible, but the 
wedge wire screen cylinders to defend against impingement and entrainment are not. 

 

X.  Public concern and request for a hearing 

Entergy’s Application fails to describe the impact on the public’s rights that are 
protected by the Waterways regulations and related statutes.  Until these impacts are 
fully described and modeled, and alternatives presented, any determination by DEP that 
the License will serve a “proper public purpose” will be arbitrary, capricious, 
unsupported by any factual evidence whatsoever, and is unlawful.  Moreover, under no 
circumstance can Entergy’s proposal to contaminate public resources with massive 
quantities of radiological material be considered a proper public purpose.   

 The Project has the potential to cause widespread harm and significant 
interference with the public rights to the tidelands along the shores of Cape Cod Bay.  I 
am including with these comments the name, addresses and signatures of 
Commonwealth residents, in addition to mine, whose rights will be harmed and who 
request a public hearing on the Application. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter.  Please direct any correspondence to 
Pine duBois, pine@jonesriver.org, 781 585 2322 and 55 Landing Road, Kingston 
MA 02364. 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
E. Pine duBois 
Executive Director, JRWA 
 

 
Cc:  
Deidre Buckley, Director 
MEPA Office 
Executive Office of Energy and Environmental Affairs (EEA) 
100 Cambridge St., Suite 900 (9th Floor) 
Attn: MEPA Office 
Boston MA, 02114 
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Attachments: 
Exhibit A-2012 Notice of Intent to Sue 

Exhibit B-June 2014 NPDES Discharge Monitoring Permit 

Exhibit C-June 9, 2014 Affidavit of DuBois  

Exhibit D-Signatures and Letters  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBITS 



	   1	  

 
EcoLaw 

PO Box 380083 
 Cambridge, MA, 02238 

 
      October 5, 2012 
By Certified Mail 
 
Lisa Jackson, Administrator                          Eric H. Holder 
1200 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W.  U.S. Attorney General     
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency  Attorney General of the United States  
Mail Code 1101A    U.S. Department of Justice 
Washington, DC 20460   950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 

Washington, DC 20530 
 
Curt Spaulding    Kenneth Kimmel 
Regional Administrator, Region I   Commissioner      
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Massachusetts Dept. of Environmental 
5 Post Office Square, Suite 100    Protection 
Boston, MA 02109-3912   One Winter Street,  
       Boston, MA 02108 
 
John T. Herron, President    C.T. Corporation System 
Entergy Nuclear Generation Company  155 Federal St., Suite 700 
and Entergy Nuclear Operations, Inc.  Boston, MA 02110 
1340 Echelon Parkway    
Jackson, MS 39213     
 
David Noyes, Operations Manager 
Robert Smith, Site Vice President 
Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station  
600 Rocky Hill Road 
Plymouth, MA 02360 
 
 
Re:  Clean Water Act, § 505 Notice of Intent to Initiate Citizen Suit for Violations at 
 Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station, Plymouth, Massachusetts 
 NPDES Permit No. MA 0000355  
 
Dear Sir/Madam:  
 
 This is a Notice of Intent (“NOI”) to commence an action pursuant to the § 505 
citizen suit provisions of the federal (“CWA” or “the Act”), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1365 (a)(1), 
(2), 1319(d), and § 1341, and 40 C.F.R. 135, after the expiration of 60 days of the date of 
this letter (NOI). 
 

Karen
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A
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 Complainants, as identified below, intend to bring an action against Entergy 
Nuclear Generating Company and Entergy Nuclear Operations, Inc. (“Entergy”),1 owner 
and operator of the Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station (“PNPS”) alleging that Entergy has  
violated and continues to violate the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1312, 1341 and 1342 by 
unlawfully discharging pollutants to waters of the United States and by failing to comply 
with the terms of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) 
permit.  
 
 Complainants will seek civil penalties against Entergy totaling 
$831,325,000.00 for the violations as described with specificity in Exhibit 1 hereto, 
which is incorporated by reference herein. Where indicated on Exhibit 1, the violations 
were determined based on Entergy’s mandatory reporting to the U.S. Environmental 
Protection Agency (“EPA”) in its monthly Discharge Monitoring Reports (“DMR”).  
Complainants will also seek injunctive relief requiring Entergy to comply with the Act, 
and fees, costs, and all other appropriate relief pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1365. 
 
I.  Law and Facts 
 
 A. Law 
 
 The CWA is a “bold and sweeping legislative initiative” with broad and ambitious 
goals.2 The Act’s objective is to restore and maintain the chemical, physical and 
biological integrity of the Nation’s waters. 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a).  To achieve this 
objective, Congress declared a national goal of totally eliminating discharges of 
pollutants into our waters by 1985, and an interim goal of making water fit for fish, 
wildlife and recreation wherever possible by July 1, 1983. 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a).  
 
 The CWA prohibits the discharge of pollutants to waters of the U.S. unless they 
are  permitted by EPA under a NPDES permit. 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311(a), 1342. Discharges 
of pollutants that exceed effluent limits contained in a NPDES permit are unlawful.  EPA 
is required to set conditions in NPDES permits that assure compliance with the Act, and 
may include conditions including data and information and reporting. §§ 1342(a)(1), 
1342(b).  The CWA says NPDES permits are for five-year terms, but they may be 
administratively extended pending the permit renewal process. 33 U.S.C. § 1342.  
Massachusetts is one of a few states without a delegated CWA program, and therefore 
EPA issues NPDES permits in Massachusetts subject to a state water quality certification 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1 Under Massachusetts law and the terms of the sale of PNPS to Entergy by Boston Edison Co., Entergy is 
liable for violations of the CWA preceding its ownership and operation of PNPS.  See, e.g., Massachusetts 
Department of Public Utilities Order, DTE 98-119/DTE 98-126 (1997), approving Boston Edison’s 
divestiture of PNPS which states that “Entergy will assume and indemnify Boston Edison against certain 
liabilities relating to the assets being sold, including unknown environmental liabilities and remediations 
other than off-site liabilities.” Order, Section III.A.1.  See, e.g, Milliken & Co. v. Duro Textiles, LLC, 451 
Mass. 547, 556 (2008) (successor is liable when it  “expressly or impliedly assumes liability of the 
predecessor.”) 
 
2 Dubois v. U.S.D.A. 102 F. 2d 1273, 1294  (1st Cir. 1996).  
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under § 1341(a)(5).3  The NPDES permit may be suspended or revoked by EPA upon the 
entering of a judgment under the CWA that PNPS has been operated in violation of 
applicable provisions of the Act.4 
 
B. Facts 
 
 Entergy owns and operates a 715-megawatt nuclear power station on Cape Cod 
Bay in Plymouth, which began operating in 1972 under Boston Edison Company.  In 
about 1999, Entergy acquired PNPS from Boston Edison Company.  Since 1972, the 
cooling and service waters systems at PNPS have operated as a once-through cooling 
system, with Cape Cod Bay being the primary water source. The NPDES permit program 
governs the PNPS cooling water intake structure (“CWIS”) pursuant to CWA §1326(a) 
and (b). Entergy’s NPDES permit authorizes the discharge of pollutants to Cape Cod Bay 
from ten point source discharge locations at PNPS, sets effluent limits and standards and 
monitoring and reporting requirements, including a multi-part program for biological 
monitoring. 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1312.5 Entergy’s NPDES permit constitutes both a 
NPDES permit and a discharge permit issued by DEP under the Massachusetts Clean 
Waters Act, as amended, M.G. L. c. 21, §§ 26-53. 
 
 EPA and Massachusetts jointly issued the first NPDES permit for PNPS in 1983. 
The permit was renewed and reissued in 1988 and in 1991 (the 1991 Permit). On August 
30, 1994, EPA modified the 1991 permit through a formal notice and comment process 
(the 1994 Permit).  The 1994 Permit was due to expire in 1996, at the end of the five-year 
term that started in 1991, but has been administratively extended by EPA for over sixteen 
years.6 
 
 The 1994 Permit is based on PNPS operating at a capacity that generates up to 
655 megawatts.  In 2003, Entergy increased PNPS’ operating capacity to 715 MW, a rate 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
3EPA and DEP have a joint permit agreement governing the NPDES permit program. See, Agreement 
between EPA and Massachusetts Department of Water Pollution Control” (March 18, 1973). Massachusetts 
must certify to EPA that Entergy’s pollutant discharges to Cape Cod Bay under the NPDES will comply 
with effluent limits and standards under § 1311, and with other provisions of the Act. 33 U.S.C. § 1341.  
 
4 CWA § 1341(a)(5) states: “Any Federal license or permit with respect to which a certification has been 
obtained under paragraph (1) of this subsection may be suspended or revoked by the Federal agency issuing 
such license or permit upon the entering of a judgment under this Act [33 USCS §§ 1251 et seq.] that such 
facility or activity has been operated in violation of the applicable provisions of section 301, 302, 303, 306, 
or 307 of this Act [33 USCS §§ 1311, 1312, 1313, 1316, 1317].” By letter dated July 8, 1994, 
Massachusetts certified to EPA pursuant to the CWA § 1341 that PNPS operations conducted in a manner 
consistent with the 1994 Permit Modification will constitute compliance with the Massachusetts Clean 
Waters Act, M.G.L. c. 21, §§ 26-53. 
 
5 EPA, 1984 Permit Fact Sheet, pg. 3; See also: Marine Ecology Studies Final Report, July 1969-December 
1977, pg. II-1 (Introduction, part (A)) and NRC’s Generic EIS for License Renewal of Nuclear Power 
Plants, Supplement 29 regarding PNPS, July 2007, at Part 2.1.2 (PNPS NUREG 1437, Supplement 29).  
 
6 EPA contends that the NPDES permit remains in effect pursuant to administrative extension provisions of 
40 C.F.R. § 122.6. See, Letters to Entergy from U.S. EPA, dated March 1, 1996 and October 25, 2004. 
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higher than authorized in the NPDES permit.  The NPDES permit has not been updated 
to reflect the higher operating rate at PNPS.7  
 
II. Complainants  
 
 Each complainant is a citizen for purposes of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1365(g), with 
standing to bring an action to protect his/her interest in restoring and maintaining the 
chemical, physical, and biological integrity of the waters of Cape Cod Bay.  The 
Complainants’ interests have been and are being affected by the CWA violations alleged 
in this NOI.  
 
 Complainant Norman Pierce has resided with his family at 166 Morgan Road in 
Plymouth, MA, about six miles from PNPS, since 1975. His phone number is 617-435-
8872. He and his family use Cape Cod Bay for outdoor recreation, including swimming, 
walking along the beaches and scenic roads, boating, whale watching and other forms of 
nature observation, and fishing.  Mr. Pierce and his family have an interest in consuming 
local fish and shellfish, and occasionally do so, but have concerns about the safety of the 
fish and shellfish due to Entergy’s pollution of the Bay. Mr. Pierce has been active in 
outreach, organizing and educational efforts to ensure that PNPS does not harm human 
health and the environment.  The violations of the CWA identified in this NOI harm Mr. 
Pierce’s interests the scenic, aesthetic, and recreational qualities of Cape Cod Bay in the 
area near PNPS and his home, and his ability to enjoy locally harvested fish and shellfish. 
The monitoring and reporting violations identified in this NOI interfere with his ability to 
ensure that PNPS operations do not harm human health and the environment.  The 
injuries to Mr. Pierce’s interests will be redressed by a favorable court decision. 
 
 Complainant Pine duBois has lived with her family at 93 Elm St in Kingston, 
MA, approximately 8.5 miles from PNPS, since 1995.  Her phone number is 781-585-
2322. She and her family use Cape Cod Bay for outdoor recreation, including swimming, 
walking along the beaches and scenic roads, boating, nature observation, and fishing, and 
they enjoy eating local fish and shellfish. For over 25 years, Ms. duBois has been active 
in outreach, organizing and educational efforts with regard to preserving and protecting 
Cape Cod Bay and the Jones River, which is the largest river emptying into the Bay.  She 
is executive director of the nonprofit Jones River Watershed Association (JRWA), whose 
mission includes protecting the Bay’s marine aquatic life. Ms. duBois has researched and 
studied the negative environmental impacts of the violations alleged in this NOI.   The 
violations of the CWA identified in this NOI harm Ms. duBois’ interests in the scenic, 
aesthetic, and recreational qualities of Cape Cod Bay in the area near PNPS and her 
home, and her ability to enjoy locally harvested fish and shellfish. The monitoring and 
reporting violations identified in this NOI interfere with her ability to ensure that PNPS 
operations do not harm the Bay’s marine aquatic resources. The injuries to Ms. duBois’ 
interests will be redressed by a favorable court decision. 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
7 In May 2003, Entergy increased PNPS’ power level from 1,998 thermal megawatts (MWt) to 2,028 MWt, 
an increase of 1.5%, which brought the station’s annual generating capacity up to the current 715 MW from 
an original capacity of 655 MW.  
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 Complainant Theodore Bosen lives at 69 Janebar Circle, Plymouth, MA, 
approximately nine miles from PNPS.  His phone number is 508-888-8888.   From 1985 
to 1991, he and his family lived in Plymouth near Long Beach.  From 1985 to the present, 
Mr. Bosen and his family have used portions of Cape Cod Bay for outdoor recreation, 
including swimming, walking along the beaches and scenic roads, boating, nature 
observation, and fishing.  As a summer visitor through the 1970's and 80's, and much 
more frequently after moving to Plymouth permanently in 1985 through the fall of 1986, 
Mr. Bosen harvested and consumed shellfish from Warren Cove around the northerly 
side of the bluff from PNPS. After he learned that pollution from PNPS was being 
discharged near the area where he harvested shellfish, he stopped harvesting and 
consuming the shellfish and visiting the beach and coastal areas around PNPS due to his 
concerns about the impacts of the pollution. The violations of the CWA identified in this 
NOI harm Mr. Bosen’s interests the scenic, aesthetic, and recreational qualities of Cape 
Cod Bay in the area near PNPS and his home, and his ability to enjoy locally harvested 
fish and shellfish. Since 1986, Mr. Bosen has been active in outreach, organizing and 
educational efforts to ensure that PNPS does not harm human health and the 
environment. The monitoring and reporting violations identified in this NOI interfere 
with his ability to ensure that PNPS operations do not harm the Bay’s marine aquatic 
resources. The injuries to Mr. Bosen’s interests will be redressed by a favorable court 
decision. 
 
III. Violations 

 
 Entergy has violated and continues to violate the CWA 33 USC §§1311(a), 1341, 
and/or 1342, by discharging and continuing to discharge pollutants into waters of the U.S. 
without a permit, and/or in violation of effluent standards or limits, and/or has failed and 
continues to fail to conduct monitoring and reporting as required by the 1994 Permit.  
EPA and Massachusetts have failed to redress these violations.  Complainants will seek a 
civil penalty of $25,000.00 per day for each of the violations set forth in Exhibit 1, 
pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1319. 
 
 Entergy’s violations have resulted in discharges of pollutants that are harmful to 
the chemical, biological, and physical integrity of the waters of Cape Cod Bay. This 
includes the discharge of tolytriazole, oil and grease, and chlorine.  Tolytriazole is a 
corrosion inhibitor that can harm marine environments and is regulated by the U.S. EPA.8 
Discharges of oil and grease and chlorine to water bodies can harm human health and the 
environment.  Entergy has also discharged wastewater that has a pH level and 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
8	  Tolytriazole is a corrosion inhibitor used to control the corrosion of copper alloys in the PNPS cooling-
water systems.  It can be considered a ubiquitous contaminant in the aquatic environment. Marine Pollution 
and Human Health, Issues in Environmental Science and Technology, Environ Sci Technol 2011 May 1; 
45(9): 3858-61 21524137, Royal Society of Chemistry publishing, ed. By RE Hester, RM Harrison.  These 
authors conclude that due to their physiochemical properties (i.e. low biodegradability and high 
hyrophobicity), corrosion inhibitors are not removed from sewage treatment plants, and coupled with their 
toxicity, pose a treat to estuarine and coastal environments. 
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temperature that are in excess of regulatory limits intended to protect water quality.  In 
addition, Entergy has failed to comply with monitoring and reporting requirements that 
are in place in order to enable the public and regulators to determine whether Entergy is 
complying with the law. 
 
 A. Ongoing discharges of tolytriazole without a permit and in violation of 
permit condition 
 
 On 220 days since June 9, 2003, Entergy9 violated the CWA §§ 1311(a), 1341, 
and 1342, and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(1)(f), (p. 2), by discharging effluent containing 
the pollutant tolytriazole into Cape Cod Bay, as shown on Exhibit 1, Section A.  
 
 Entergy does not have a NPDES permit that allows the discharge to Cape Cod 
Bay of tolytriazole, a pollutant within the meaning of the Act.  The 1994 Permit, Part 
(A)(1)(f), sets a zero discharge limit for tolytriazole.  It states, “[t]here shall be no 
discharge of treated or untreated chemicals which result from cleaning or washing of 
condensers or equipment wherein heavy metals may be discharged.” The discharge of 
tolytriazole results from cleaning or washing of condensers wherein heavy metals may be 
discharged.10 
 
 B. Discharge of TSS and oil and grease from unpermitted storm drain 
 
 On 21 days since October 1995, Entergy violated the CWA §§1311(a) and 1341 
by discharging effluent containing pollutants to Cape Cod Bay through an unpermitted 
storm drain as shown on Exhibit 1, Section B. In a 1995 letter to EPA dated October 25, 
1995, Boston Edison identified this storm drain as unpermitted and admitted that the 
storm drain discharges pollutants, identified as total suspended solids (TSS) and oil and 
grease, like the discharges from the other on-site storm drains, to Cape Cod Bay.11   
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
9 Complainants refer to Entergy as the “violator” even for violations occurring prior to 1999, when Entergy 
acquired PNPS from Boston Edison Company. See Footnote 1 for Entergy’s assumption of liability for 
these violations.  
 
10 By letter dated June 30, 1995 (the 1995 letter), Exhibit 2 hereto, EPA purported to “modify” the 1994 
Permit to allow PNPS to discharge tolytriazole, but this action violated the CWA and was not a minor 
permit modification under 40 CFR § 122.63.  EPA was required to issue a draft permit for public notice and 
comment but failed to do so.  See, 40 CFR § 122.62.Moreover, even if the 1995 letter is a valid permit 
modification, Entergy has failed to demonstrate compliance with the tolytriazole effluent limits EPA 
purported to set. EPA purported to set effluent limits for tolytriazole in the 1995 letter. (An “initial” 
tolytriazole concentration limit of 20 mg/l, a “final” discharge concentration of 2 mg/l, and a “worst case 
scenario,” effluent limit of 2.35 mg/l at a volume of 200 gallons per minute (GPM) of tolytriazole.)  

11 The 21 violations are calculated as follows. An October 25, 1995 Boston Edison letter states there is an 
unpermitted storm drain located “at the boat launch between storm drain Outfalls 006 and 007” that “drains 
a small portion of the facility which is similar to the drainage areas for Outfalls 004, 005, 006, and 007. 
Stormwater runoff from the miscellaneous outfall is expected, therefore, to be similar to runoff from the 
other four outfalls.”   October 25, 1995 Letter, p. 3, Complainants’ Exhibit 3. According to Entergy DMRs 
and the 1994 permit, Outfalls 004, 005, 006 and 007 discharge effluent containing the pollutants total 
suspended solids (TSS) and oil and grease.  1994 Permit, p. 12, Part A(7). Therefore, Entergy has admitted 
that the unpermitted storm drain discharges effluent containing these same pollutants.  See also, April 1999 



	   7	  

 
These violations are ongoing and occur whenever there is a storm event that results in 
discharge of effluent containing pollutants through the unpermitted storm drain to Cape 
Cod Bay. 
 
 C.  Ongoing violation of chlorine (TRO) limit for condenser cooling water 
 discharge at Outfall 001  
 
 Entergy violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(1)(a)(1), (p. 2),  
by exceeding the maximum daily effluent limit of 0.1 mg/l for total residual oxidant 
(TRO) at Outfall 001 on the three days identified in Exhibit 1, Section C. Entergy shows 
an ongoing pattern of noncompliance with this effluent limit.12  
 
 D. Violation of chlorine (TRO) limit for service water discharge at Outfall 
 010  
  
 Entergy violated the CWA§ 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(5)(a) (p. 10), by 
exceeding the maximum daily effluent limit of 1.0 mg/l for TRO at Outfall 010 on the 47 
days identified in Exhibit 1, Section D.13  
 
 The 1994 Permit TRO effluent limits for Outfall 010 are 0.50 mg/l average 
monthly and 1.0 mg/l daily maximum.  Entergy’s DMRs report eight daily violations of 
the average monthly and daily maximum limits between May 2001 and July 20, 2011. 
Further, for at least 39 months between December 1996 and April 2000, Entergy’s DMRs 
simply state that “periodically total residual chlorine exceeded permit requirements prior 
to dilution” at Outfall 010.  Each of the 39 months has been counted as only one daily 
violation, and is combined with the eight individual days of violation for a total of 47 
days.  
 
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
DMR ("EPA was contacted to remind them that a small miscellaneous yard drain noted in the 1995 permit 
application is not covered in the existing permit…”).  Further, Entergy’s DMRs show that grab samples 
were collected twice per year from storm drain Outfalls 004, 005, 006, and 007 “within the first hour of the 
start of a significant storm event” on 21 occasions between 1997 and November 2010. Therefore, on these 
same 21 occasions, there were also discharges of effluent containing pollutants from the unpermitted storm 
drain, according to Entergy’s admissions.  See, Exhibit 1, Part B, for the months in which Entergy’s DMRs 
show discharges of effluent containing pollutants from storm drains 004 through 007.   
 
12 The condenser cooling water discharge from Outfall 001 (1994 Permit, p. 6) is the largest of the PNPS 
point source discharges to Cape Cod Bay. The 1994 Permit allows a discharge limit of 510 million gallons 
a day (mgd) daily maximum, and 447 mgd average monthly volume limit. There is no real time flow 
monitor to document the actual amount of condenser cooling water discharged to Cape Cod Bay from 
Outfall 001; the 1994 Permit allows PNPS to estimate the flow “from pump capacity curves and 
operational hours.”  1994 Permit, Part (A)(2)(a). Entergy has reported the same daily maximum flow of 
446.4 mgd in every monthly DMR for over a decade, regardless of the hours of operation in any given 
month, raising questions about the accuracy of this measurement. 
 
13 The 1983 Permit established far more stringent effluent limits of .25 mg/l average monthly and .5 mg/l 
maximum daily TRO at Outfall 010.  Even with the relaxed effluent limits, Entergy still shows a pattern of 
noncompliance with this permit condition.  
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 E. Ongoing violations of monitoring and reporting requirement for pH level 
 in condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001 
 
 Entergy violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(2)(a), by failing 
to monitor and report the pH of the condenser cooling water effluent discharged from 
Outfall 001, on 6,514 occasions since 1994, as identified in Exhibit 1, Section E.  The pH 
of the condenser cooling water discharged from Outfall 001 “shall not vary by more than 
.5 standard units from that of the intake water.” 1994 Permit, part (A)(2)(a), (p. 6). The 
pH standard must be met at all times when the cooling water effluent is being discharged 
from Outfall 001.  Id. Entergy has failed and continues to fail to monitor and report the 
discharge from Outfall 001 in a manner that establishes that the pH of the discharge from 
does not vary more than .5 standard units from that of the intake water.  
 
 F. Ongoing violations of monitoring and reporting requirement for pH of 
 thermal backwash discharges from Outfall 002 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(3)(c), (p. 8), 
by failing to monitor and report the pH of the thermal backwash effluent discharged from 
Outfall 002 on 41 occasions since 2001, as identified in Exhibit 1, Section F.14   
 
 Under the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(3),(p. 8),  the thermal backwash discharge pH 
“shall not vary by more than .5 standard units from that of the intake water.” Entergy’s 
DMRs state that the thermal backwash meets the pH standard, but fail to provide 
documentation or data to show that this is in fact the case, and thus the monitoring and 
reporting is inadequate.  Entergy has violated and continues to violate Part (A)(3), (p. 8), 
by failing to monitor and report the pH of the effluent and that of the intake water to 
determine whether the pH varies by more than .5 standard units during thermal backwash 
operations.  
 
 G. Ongoing Violations of monitoring and reporting requirements for pH of 
 intake screen wash (fish sluice water) discharge at Outfall 003 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(4)(e), (p. 9), 
by failing to monitor and report the pH of the intake water and effluent discharged from 
Outfall 003, on the 2,793 occasions identified in Exhibit 1, Section G.15 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
14 Three to five times per year, PNPS is reduced to 50% power and a thermal backwash is conducted to 
control biological fouling.  During the backwash, water is heated to about 105 degrees F and two of the 
four traveling screens on the intake structure are rotated in reverse, allowing heated, non-chlorinated 
seawater from the condensers to flow back over the screens and to the intake embayment.  The treatment is 
maintained for about 35 minutes. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Supplemental Environmental Impact 
Statement, PNPS, Vol. 29, NUREG-1437, July, 2007, § 2.1.3, p. 2-11. 
 
15 Prior to water flowing through either the cooling water pumps or the service water pumps, it passes 
through 10-ft wide screens that are intended to prevent debris and aquatic organisms from being entrained 
in the cooling or service water systems.   The screens are washed when they are in operation by using 
pressure hoses to remove the trapped organisms from the screens.  Impinged fish are washed into a fish-
return sluiceway that discharges to Cape Cod Bay.” According to the 2007 EIS, impingement sampling 
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The effluent limit for the Intake Screen Wash (Fish Sluice Water) at Outfall 003 “shall 
not vary by more than .5 standard units from that of the intake water.” 1994 Permit, Part 
(A)(4)(e). The pH standard must be met at all times when the effluent is being discharged 
from Outfall 003.  Entergy failed and continues to fail to monitor and report the pH of the 
intake water to establish that the Intake Screen Wash effluent discharged through Outfall 
003 does not vary by more than .5 standard units from the intake water. 
 
 H. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting for pH of storm drain 
 discharges at Outfalls 004, 005, 006 and/or 007 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(7)(f), (p.12), 
on 21 days since 1994, by failing to properly monitor and report the pH level of 
discharges from storm drain Outfalls 004, 005, 006, and/or 007, as identified in Exhibit 1, 
Section H. 
 
 Discharges from Outfalls 004, 005, 006, and/or 007 must be monitored twice per 
year, during April and September and “[t]he pH shall not be less than 6.0 standard units 
nor greater than 8.5 standard units, or not more than .2 standard units outside the 
naturally occurring range.” 1994 Permit, Part (A)(7)(f).  Entergy has failed to monitor 
and report and continues to fail to monitor the pH of the discharges to show that these pH 
requirements are being met.   
 
 Entergy has also violated and continues to violate the monitoring and reporting 
requirements of the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(7)(f), by failing to report the ambient pH of the 
Cape Cod Bay receiving waters to determine if the pH in the effluent discharged to the 
Bay from Outfalls 004, 005, 006, and/or 007 meets the .2 delta standard. 
 
 I. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for 
 temperature of condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(1)(g), (p. 3) 
on 6,545 days since 1994 by failing to properly monitor and report the temperature of 
condenser cooling water discharge, as identified in Exhibit 1, Section I. 
 
           The rate of change in temperature of the condenser cooling water discharge from 
Outfall 001 may not exceed (1) a 3-degree Fahrenheit rise or fall for any sixty-minute 
period during normal steady state plant operation, and (2) a 10-degree Fahrenheit change 
during any sixty-minute period of normal load cycling, subject to certain exemptions. 
1994 Permit, Part (A)(1)(g). Entergy has failed and continues to fail to monitor and report 
the temperature in a manner that shows that the condenser cooling water meets the 
temperature limit. Entergy’s DMRs show only a maximum daily temperature for the 
condenser cooling water discharge, which fails to meet the monitoring and reporting 
conditions in the 1994 Permit.  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
occurs three times each week, and a screen wash “is scheduled for eight hours prior to each of the three 
sampling events.”  NUREG 1437, Supp. 29, pg. 2-10 (2007 EIS). 
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 J. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for 
 temperature of intake screen wash (fish sluice water) discharge at Outfall 
 003 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(4)(b), (p.9), 
by failing to properly monitor and report the temperature of the discharge on 2,793 
occasions since 1994, as shown on Exhibit 1, Section J. The temperature of the discharge 
from Outfall 003 “shall at no time exceed the temperature of the intake water used for 
this discharge.” Entergy failed to monitor and report the temperature of the intake water 
to determine whether the discharge from Outfall 003 was the same as that of the intake 
water. 
 
 K. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for chlorine 
 (TRO) in condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA, § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(2)(a), (p. 6), 
by failing to conduct continuous chlorine testing of the condenser cooling water 
discharged at Outfall 001 (510 mgd maximum volume)16 on 2,154 occasions from at least 
August 26, 1998 to the present, as shown on Exhibit 1, Section K. 
 
 Entergy’s DMRs report 2,154 days of chlorination of the condenser cooling 
system for 2 hours per day between January 1, 2002 and July 31, 2012. The DMRS fail to 
identify the specific day of chlorination.17  Pursuant to the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(2)(a), 
Entergy was required to have conducted continuous chlorine testing on each of the 2,154 
days that the condenser cooling water was chlorinated and discharged to Cape Cod Bay 
via Outfall 001.  
 
 L. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for chlorine 
 (TRO) in service cooling water discharge at Outfall 010 
 
 Entergy has violated and continues to violate the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 
Permit, Part (A)(5)(a), (p.10), by failing to conduct continuous chlorine testing on the 
service cooling water discharged from Outfall 010 on 5,086 occasions from 1998 to the 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
16 While the EPA purported to modify these sampling procedures via letter dated August 26, 1998, this 
modification was invalid because it was not a “minor modification” under 40 CFR § 122(a) - (h) and 
required public notice and comment. See, Exhibit No.4.  
 
17 From September of 1998 through November of 2001, Entergy’s DMRs either state that chlorination of 
condenser cooling water at outfall 001 occurred “when intake screens were in service” or completely fail to 
state the total number of days of chlorination. This makes it impossible to determine the actual number of 
days of violation of this permit condition. When the months for which data is available are averaged by 
year, PNPS chlorinates its cooling water between 14 to 26 days per month. According to the EIS, 
hypochlorination events take place during spring, summer and fall when chlorination events occur for up to 
two hours per day. On information and belief, it is very likely that there were hypochlorination events 
during the spring, summer, and fall of the following years: 1998, 1999, 2000, and 2001. 
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present, as identified on Exhibit 1, Section L. 18 
 
 The 1994 Permit requires Entergy to conduct continuous chlorine testing on each 
of the 5,086 days that the plant service cooling water was chlorinated and discharged via 
Outfall 010.  Entergy’s failure to conduct continuous chlorine testing on each day that the 
service cooling water was chlorinated (which is and was continuously chlorinated) is a 
violation of the 1994 Permit, Part (A)(5)(a). 
 
 M. Ongoing violation of permit condition requiring an approved Annual 
 Environmental Monitoring Program carried out under the oversight of the 
 PATC 
 
 From January 1, 2002 to the present, Entergy has been operating PNPS without an 
approved environmental monitoring program, in violation of the CWA § 1342 and the 
1994 Permit, Part (A)(8)(b) through (e), (p.13), for a total of 3,865 days of violation as 
identified in Exhibit 1, Section M.  
 
 The 1994 Permit states that Entergy, “shall conduct such studies and monitoring 
as are determined by the EPA and the State to be necessary to evaluate the effect of the 
operation of the Pilgrim station on the balanced, indigenous community of shellfish, fish, 
and wildlife in and on Cape Cod Bay.” Id. at (A)(8)(b).  In 1990, an Environmental 
Monitoring Program was approved by EPA and the state, and any revisions “which may 
be warranted by the availability of new information” must be approved by EPA and the 
state annually. Id. at (A)(8)(b)-(e).  This monitoring program, once approved “becomes 
an integral element of this permit.” Id. at (8)(a)(c). 
 
 The 1994 Permit further requires Entergy to “carry out the monitoring program 
under the guidance of the Pilgrim Technical Advisory Committee.”  Id. at 8(d).19  The 
PATC is an advisory committee established to ensure the Pilgrim marine studies have the 
benefit of qualified, outside scientific and technical advice, and are responsive to 
regulatory agencies. 1991 and 1994 Permit, Attachment “A,” Part (I)(A) and 1994 
Permit, Part (A)(8)(d). The PATC met as a whole body twice annually for a total of 93 
meetings, documented between 1972 and 1999.  The PATC has not met since January 3, 
2000, soon after Entergy took ownership of PNPS.  

 Since 2002, Entergy has made unilateral changes to the last Environmental 
Monitoring Program that was approved by EPA and DEP in 2002. Although Entergy has 
submitted identical annual environmental programs to EPA and DEP every year since 
2002, there is no record or evidence of approval by the PATC, EPA, or the state of any 

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
18 The PNPS service cooling water system is continuously chlorinated for macroinvertebrate control. The 
monthly DMRs list “continuous” as the required “frequency of analysis” for TRO at Outfall 010. (See, Jan. 
2012 DMR for Outfall 010).  Entergy’s hand-written data on the same DMRs admits that grab samples are 
performed instead.  
 
19	  The	  PATC	  is	  also	  referred	  to	  as	  the	  “Pilgrim	  Administrative-‐Technical	  Committee.”	  	  See,	  e.g.,	  
Marine	  Ecology	  Monitoring	  plan,	  Attachment	  A	  to	  NPDES	  permit,	  para.	  IA.	  
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annual program since 2002.  This violation of the 1994 Permit, Parts (A)(8)(b)-(e) is 
ongoing. 
 
 N. Ongoing violation of permit condition requiring collection and reporting 

of benthic monitoring data 
 

 From 2000 and continuing to the present, Entergy has violated and continues to 
violate the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, parts (A)(1)(h), (p. 3), and (A)(8)(d), (p. 
13) and Part I.D. of the Marine Environmental Monitoring Plan by failing to collect and 
report data on benthic monitoring two times a year, in March and September, for a total 
of 23 violations (2 per year 2000 through 2011, and March, 2012), and by failing to 
conduct transect monitoring 4 times per year, in March, June, September and December, 
for a total of 46 violations (4 per year 2000-2011, and March and June, 2012), as shown 
in Exhibit 1, Section N (69 total violations).  
 
 The 1990 Marine Environmental Monitoring Program, Part I.D, Attachment A to 
the 1994 Permit and incorporated by reference via Parts (A)(1)(h) and (A)(8)(d) states, 
 

The benthic flora and fauna will be monitored at three sampling stations at depths 
of approximately 10 feet (MLW) (Figure 1).  The dominant flora and fauna in 
each plot are recorded and quantitative samples are collected from rock surfaces.  
Sampling will continue two times a year (March and September) to determine 
power plant-related effects. 

 
In addition, transect monitoring to map the extent of stunted and denuded areas 
immediately off the discharge canal will be continued 4 times a year (March, 
June, September and December) in 1990.”  

 
 O. Ongoing violation of permit conditions for protection of fish from gas 
 bubble disease 
 
 Entergy has violated the CWA § 1342 and the 1994 Permit, Parts (A)(2)(e) and 
(f), (p.7), on 2,989 days since April 2000, by failing to maintain a barrier net near to the 
terminal end of the discharge canal for the protection of menhaden and other finfish, 
and/or by failing to monitor and report dissolved nitrogen saturation levels in the 
discharge canal at the point of discharge, as shown on Exhibit 1, Section O. 
 
 The 1994 Permit, Part (A)(2)(e), (p.7), requires that “[t]he permittee shall 
maintain a barrier net as near to the terminal end of the discharge canal as good 
engineering practice will allow. Except for changing nets or other barrier maintenance, it 
shall prevent fish entry into the canal from April 1 to November 30 each year when the 
plant is operating.” Part (A)(2)(f) requires that “[i]f EPA or the State determine that the 
physical barrier net required by Subparagraph “e” above does not effectively prevent the 
mortality of menhaden or other finfish, the permittee shall, from the date of said 
determination, maintain an average dissolved nitrogen saturation level of less than 
115%.”  
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 Entergy has failed, and continues to fail, to maintain the barrier net during the 
period from April 1 to November 30 in each year from 2000 to 2011, and from April 1, 
2012 to the present, and has failed to monitor and report that the average dissolved 
nitrogen saturation is less than 115% during that time period, in violation of the 1994 
Permit, Parts (A)(2)(e) and (f).  
 
IV. Relief Requested  
 
 The Complainants will seek mandatory, prohibitory and prospective injunctive 
relief ordering compliance, civil penalties, fees and costs, and all other appropriate relief 
available under the CWA §§ 1319 and 1365(a) and other applicable statutes to redress 
past, ongoing, and prospective violations of the Act, including but not limited to: 
 
A. Civil penalties of $25,000.00 per day for each violation described in Exhibit 1 hereto; 

 
B. An order requiring Entergy to comply with effluent standards and limits in the 1994 

Permit for PNPS, and with its monitoring and reporting requirements; 
 

C. An injunction requiring Entergy to cease and desist its unpermitted discharges into 
Cape Cod Bay; and  

 
D. Other relief that is just and proper. 
 

 
The Complainants are represented by counsel as identified below.  For questions 
regarding this NOI, please contact Margaret E. Sheehan, Esq., at 508 259 9154.  
 
    
    Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
    Margaret E. Sheehan, Esq. 
    P.O. Box 380083 
    Cambridge MA 02238 
    Phone 508 259 9154 
 
 
 
    Genevieve Byrne, Esq.  
    P.O. Box 380083 
    Cambridge MA 02238 
    Phone 508 259 9154 
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Senator John Kerry 
Senator Scott Brown 
Representative Edward Markey 
Representative Bill Keating  
Governor Deval Patrick 
Secretary of EOEEA, Richard Sullivan 
Senator Therese Murray 
Senator Marc Pacheco 
Senator Dan Wolf 
Senator James Eldridge 
Senator Robert Hedlund 
Senator Benjamin Downing 
Senator William Brownsberger 
Representative Tom Calter 
Representative Vinny DeMacedo 
Representative Sarah Peake 
Representative Lori Ehrlich 
Representative James Cantwell 
Representative Anne Gobi 
Representative Frank Smizik 
Representative Kate Hogan 
Representative Randy Hunt 
Representative Dan Winslow 
Town of Plymouth, Board of Selectmen 
Town of Plymouth, Nuclear Matters Committee 
Town of Duxbury, Nuclear Matters Committee 
 
 
 
 



Complainant’s Exhibit List 
Clean Water Act, § 505 Notice of Intent to Initiate Citizen Suit 

Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station, Plymouth, Massachusetts, NPDES Permit No. MA 
0000355 

 
 

1. Table of Violations 
2. Letter from U.S. EPA to Boston Edison, dated June 30, 1995, re: tolytriazole. 
3. Letter from Boston Edison to U.S. EPA, dated October 25, 1995, re: NPDES 

permit renewal and “miscellaneous” storm drain. 
4. Letter to Boston Edison from U.S. EPA, dated August 26, 1998, re: chlorine 

sampling procedures. 
	  



   
Complainant’s Exhibit 1 

 
Clean Water Act, § 505 Notice of Intent to Initiate Citizen Suit 

Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station, Plymouth, Massachusetts, NPDES Permit No. MA 0000355 
	  
	  
Sec. A: Ongoing discharges of tolytriazole and without a permit and in violation of 
permit condition (A)(1)(f) and CWA, 33 USC §§ 1311(a), 1341, and 1342  

  
 Concentration (mg/l)  Flow      

Date Initial Final 
Total 
Gallons 

Avg. 
(g/m) 

Max. 
(g/m) pH 

TSS 
(mg/l) Outfall  

 
Days  

6/9/03-
6/12/03 5 0.0016 10000 2 100 7.7 0.4 011 

 
4  

6/23/03 5 0.0032 10700 - - 7.0 53 011 1  
11/13/93 5 0.0032 10860 - - 6.8 2.5 011 1  
5/25/04-
5/27/04 3 0.001 18000 15 50 7.9 0.2 011 3  
6/14/05 14 0.001 200 10 15 8.2 0.14 011 1  
7/20/05 14 0.001 3500 10 15 7.6 0.14 011 1  
1/21/06 13 - 4000 33 33 9.0 - 005 1  
1/30/06 3.2 0.002 9520 - - 7.8 46.1 011 1  
2/10/06 6 - 20 - - 8.6 - 005 1  
6/3/06 7 0.001 13000 10 50 7.7 0.5 011 1  
4/7/07 3.2 0.004 9519 - - 6.9 39 011 1  
6/1/07 5 0.001 10000 10 50 8.3 0.001 011 1  

6/29/07 1 0.001 450 10 50 7.6 0.001 011 1  
8/30/07 3.2 0.002 9352 55 200 6.1 0.001 011 1  

11/16/07 1 0.001 9520 79 200 7.7 15.9 011 1  
5/31/08 4 0.001 5300 8 50 7.9 0.5 011 1  
6/1/08 4 0.001 12600 8 50 7.9 0.5 011 1  

7/15/08 4 0.001 160 5 50 7.9 0.5 011 1  
1/21/09 1 0.001 10354 100 200 7.5 20 011 1  
10/6/09 62 0.006 2300 25 30 8.2 0.500 011 1  

10/14/09 62 0.006 7500 25 30 8.2 0.500 011 1  
5/22/10 25.0* 0.004 2400 10 50 8.2 0.3 011 1  
12/3/10 1.0 0.001 8016 50 200 8.1 13.8 011 1  
1/19/11-
4/21/11 30* 0.0001 1000 42 42 

 
- 

 
- 001 92  

1/20/11 1.0 0.0007 7849 50 200 7.9 1.2 011 1  
2/1/11 5.0 0.003 10020 100 200 7.4 22.5 001 1  
3/7/11 3.0 0.002 8851 100 200 7.2 21.5 001 1  

3/14/11 4.0 0.003 9519 100 200 7.4 1.0 001 1  
3/16/11 7.0 0.005 9686 100 200 7.2 15.4 001 1  
3/18/11 3.2 0.002 9352 100 200 7.3 3.2 001 1  
3/21/11 8.0 0.005 9690 100 200 6.9 2.2 001 1  
3/22/11 3.2 0.002 9770 100 200 7.3 13.6 001 1  
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Sec. A, cont’d  
 Concentration (mg/l)  Flow      

Date Initial Final Gallons 
Avg. 
(g/m) 

Max. 
(g/m) pH 

TSS 
(mg/l) Outfall 

 
Days  

3/23/11 3.2 0.002 9686 100 200 7.0 2.0 001 1  
3/28/11 3.2 0.002 10000 100 200 7.6 4.8 001 1  
3/30/11 3.0 0.002 9686 100 200 7.5 3.4 001 1  
4/4/11 3.0 0.002 9686 100 200 6.9 2.8 001 1  
4/6/11 5.0 0.003 9686 100 200 7.3 1.4 001 1  
4/8/11 7.0 0.005 9686 100 200 7.4 1.8 001 1  

5/24/11 4.0 0.003 9853 100 200 8.1 14.2 001 1  
5/26/11 6.0 0.004 8350 100 200 7.4 7.5 001 1  
6/2/11 9.0 0.006 9653 100 200 7.3 5.4 001 1  

8/11/11 8.0 0.001 2650 10 20 7.9 0.5 011 1  
8/25/11-
11/1/11 15.0 0.000 2000 1.4 1.4 

 
- 

 
- 001 68  

9/17/11 8.0 0.001 5100 10 30 7.9 0.5 011 1  
9/28/11 8.0 0.001 3400 10 30 7.9 0.5 011 1  

12/10/11 8.0 0.005 8680 100 200 8.0 15.5 001 1  
12/13/11 6.0 0.004 9018 100 200 7.8 3.2 001 1  
12/14/11 5.0 0.003 8850 100 200 7.6 1.8 001 1  
1/12/12 17.0 0.011 9686 100 200 8.2 3.6 011 1  
1/18/12 11.0 0.007 8684 100 200 7.6 2.0 011 1  
1/20/12 3.0 0.002 10020 100 200 7.5 2.8 011 1  
1/24/12 3.2 0.002 9520 100 200 7.4 0.8 011 1  
1/26/12 3.2 0.002 9690 100 200 7.3 1.8 011 1  
7/13/12 5.0 0.002 3955 4 20 7.1 .5 011 1  
7/14/12 5.0 0.002 5040 4 20 7.1 .5 011 1  
7/15/12 5.0 0.002 5040 4 20 7.1 .5 011 1  
7/16/12 5.0 0.002 3990 4 20 7.1 .5 011 1  

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 220  
	  
 
 
• violations of purported tolytriazole limit. 
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Sec. B: Discharge of TSS and oil and grease from unpermitted storm drain in 
violation of CWA §§ 1311(a) and 1341 

 
SAMPLING MONTH TSS in effluent? Oil & Grease in effluent? Days of Violation 
May 1997 Yes Yes 1 
October 1997 Yes Yes 1 
April 1998 Yes Yes 1 
September 1998 Yes No 1 
May 1999 Yes No 1 
September 1999 Yes No 1 
April 2000 Yes Yes 1 
April 2001 Yes Yes 1 
September 2000 Yes Yes 1 
July 2001 Yes Yes 1 
September 2001 Yes Yes 1 
April 2002 Yes Yes 1 
September 2002 Yes Yes 1 
April 2003 Yes Yes 1 
April 2004 Yes Yes 1 
September 2004 Yes Yes 1 
April 2005 Yes Yes 1 
April 2007 Yes Yes 1 
November 2007 Yes Yes 1 
June 2009 Yes Yes 1 
November 2010 Yes Yes 1 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 21 
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
Sec. C: Ongoing violation of chlorine (TRO) limit for condenser cooling water 
discharge at Outfall 001: CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, part (A)(1)(a)(1) 

 
Date Maximum Daily TRO (limit .1 mg/l) Days of Violation 

3/21/01 0.18 1 
2/1/05 0.18 1 

12/14/11 0.14 1 
TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 3 
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Sec. D: Violation of chlorine (TRO) limit for service water discharge at Outfall 010: 
CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Part (A)(5)(a) 

 
Date Maximum Daily TRO (limit 1.0 mg/l) Days of Violation (Each 

month is considered one 
day except where noted) 

Dec-96 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jan-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
2/18/97 1.47 1 
Feb-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Mar-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Apr-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
May-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jun-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jul-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 

Aug-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Sep-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Oct-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Nov-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Dec-97 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jan-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Feb-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Mar-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Apr-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
May-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jun-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jul-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 

Aug-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Sep-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Oct-98 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jan-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Feb-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Mar-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Apr-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
May-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jun-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jul-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 

Aug-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Sep-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Oct-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Nov-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Dec-99 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Jan-00 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Feb-00 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Mar-00 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
Apr-00 "periodic violations of permit requirements prior to dilution" 1 
5/14/01 1.11 1 
8/25/06 1.05 1 
2/19/08 1.25 1 
3/31/10 1.03 1 

11/27/10 2.4 1 
4/5/11 1.3 1 

7/20/11 1.15 1 
TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 47 
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Sec. E: Ongoing violations of monitoring and reporting requirement for pH level in 
condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001: CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Part 
(A)(2)(a) 

 
Dates Monitored/Reported pH of intake water and 

effluent? 
Days of Violation 

8/30/94-12/31/94 No 123 
1/1/95-12/31/95 No 365 

   1/1/96-12/31/96 No 366 
1/1/97-12/31/97 No 365 
1/1/98-12/31/98 No 365 
1/1/99-12/31/99 No 365 
1/1/00-12/31/00 No 366 
1/1/01-12/31/01 No 365 
1/1/02-12/31/02 No 365 
1/1/03-12/31/03 No 365 
1/1/04-12/31/04 No 366 
1/1/05-12/31/05 No 365 
1/1/06-12/31/06 No 365 
1/1/07-12/31/07 No 365 
1/1/08-12/31/08 No 366 
1/1/09-12/31/09 No 365 
1/1/10-12/31/10 No 365 
1/1/11-12/31/11 No 365 
1/1/12-7/31/12 No  213 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 6,545 
	  
	  
Sec. F: Ongoing violations of monitoring and reporting requirement for pH of 
thermal backwash discharges from Outfall 002:  CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Part 
(A)(3) 

 
Dates Thermal Backwashing Event? Monitored/Reported pH of intake 

water and effluent? 
Days of Violation 

9/17/01 Yes  No 1 
9/18/01 Yes No 1 

5/30/02 Yes No 1 
7/17/02 Yes No 1 
12/3/02 Yes No 1 
6/12/03 Yes No 1 
8/7/03 Yes No 1 

9/29/03 Yes No 1 
11/25/03 Yes No 1 
3/22/04 Yes No 1 
6/3/04 Yes No 1 
6/4/04 Yes No 1 

7/30/04 Yes No 1 
7/31/04 Yes No 1 
6/28/05 Yes No 1 
8/24/05 Yes No 1 
11/3/05 Yes No 1 
3/10/06 Yes No 1 
6/21/06 Yes No  1 
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Sec. F, continued 
Dates Thermal Backwashing Event? Monitored/Reported pH of intake 

water and effluent? 
Days of Violation 

8/15/06 Yes No 1 
10/11/06 Yes No 1 
7/10/07 Yes No 1 
8/27/07 Yes No 1 

10/30/07 Yes No 1 
5/4/08 Yes No 1 
5/5/08 Yes No 1 

6/26/08 Yes No 1 
6/30/08 Yes No 1 
8/20/08 Yes No 1 

10/17/08 Yes No 1 
7/13/09 Yes No 1 
8/25/09 Yes No 1 

10/21/09 Yes No 1 
7/29/10 Yes No 1 
8/17/10 Yes No 1 

10/13/10 Yes No 1 
9/20/11 Yes No 1 

11/17/11 Yes No 1 
5/22/12 Yes No 1 
6/25/12 Yes No 1 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 41 
	  

	  
Sec. G. Ongoing Violations of monitoring and reporting requirements for pH of 
intake screen wash (fish sluice water) discharge at Outfall 003: CWA § 1342 and 1994 
Permit, Part (A)(4)(e) 

 
Dates # Weeks Monitored/Reported pH of intake 

water and effluent? 
Days of Violation (3x/week) 

8/30/94-12/31/94 17 No 51 
1/1/95-12/31/95 52 No 156 

   1/1/96-12/31/96 52 No 156 
1/1/97-12/31/97 52 No 156 
1/1/98-12/31/98 52 No 156 
1/1/99-12/31/99 52 No 156 
1/1/00-12/31/00 52 No 156 
1/1/01-12/31/01 52 No 156 
1/1/02-12/31/02 52 No 156 
1/1/03-12/31/03 52 No 156 
1/1/04-12/31/04 52 No 156 
1/1/05-12/31/05 52 No 156 
1/1/06-12/31/06 52 No 156 
1/1/07-12/31/07 52 No 156 
1/1/08-12/31/08 52 No 156 
1/1/09-12/31/09 52 No 156 
1/1/10-12/31/10 52 No 156 
1/1/11-12/31/11 52 No 156 
1/1/12-7/31/12 30 No  90 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 2,793 
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Sec. H. Violation of monitoring and reporting for pH of storm drain discharges at 
Outfalls 004, 005, 006 and/or 007:  CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Part (A)(7)(f) 
SAMPLING MONTH Monitored/Reported ambient and  

effluent pH? 
Days of Violation 

May 1997 No 1 
October 1997 No 1 
April 1998 No 1 
September 1998 No 1 
May 1999 No 1 
September 1999 No 1 
April 2000 No 1 
September 2000 No 1 
April 2001 No 1 
July 2001 No 1 
September 2001 No 1 
April 2002 No 1 
September 2002 No 1 
April 2003 No 1 
April 2004 No 1 
September 2004 No 1 
April 2005 No 1 
April 2007 No 1 
November 2007 No 1 
June 2009 No 1 
November 2010 No 1 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 21 
	  
Sec. I. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for temperature 
of condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001:  CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, 
Part (A)(1)(g) 

Dates Monitored hourly temperature delta? Days of Violation 
8/30/94-12/31/94 No 123 
1/1/95-12/31/95 No 365 

   1/1/96-12/31/96 No 366 
1/1/97-12/31/97 No 365 
1/1/98-12/31/98 No 365 
1/1/99-12/31/99 No 365 
1/1/00-12/31/00 No 366 
1/1/01-12/31/01 No 365 
1/1/02-12/31/02 No 365 
1/1/03-12/31/03 No 365 
1/1/04-12/31/04 No 366 
1/1/05-12/31/05 No 365 
1/1/06-12/31/06 No 365 
1/1/07-12/31/07 No 365 
1/1/08-12/31/08 No 366 
1/1/09-12/31/09 No 365 
1/1/10-12/31/10 No 365 
1/1/11-12/31/11 No 365 
1/1/12-7/31/12 No  213 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 6,545 
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Sec. J: Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for temperature 
of intake screen wash (fish sluice water) discharge at Outfall 003: CWA § 1342 and 
1994 Permit, Part (A)(4)(b) 

 
Dates # Weeks Monitored/Reported temperature 

of intake water? 
Days of Violation (3x/week) 

8/30/94-12/31/94 17 No 51 
1/1/95-12/31/95 52 No 156 

   1/1/96-12/31/96 52 No 156 
1/1/97-12/31/97 52 No 156 
1/1/98-12/31/98 52 No 156 
1/1/99-12/31/99 52 No 156 
1/1/00-12/31/00 52 No 156 
1/1/01-12/31/01 52 No 156 
1/1/02-12/31/02 52 No 156 
1/1/03-12/31/03 52 No 156 
1/1/04-12/31/04 52 No 156 
1/1/05-12/31/05 52 No 156 
1/1/06-12/31/06 52 No 156 
1/1/07-12/31/07 52 No 156 
1/1/08-12/31/08 52 No 156 
1/1/09-12/31/09 52 No 156 
1/1/10-12/31/10 52 No 156 
1/1/11-12/31/11 52 No 156 
1/1/12-7/31/12 30 No  90 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 2,793 
	  
	  
Sec. K: Ongoing Violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for chlorine 
(TRO) in condenser cooling water discharge at Outfall 001: CWA § 1342 and 1994 
Permit, Part (A)(2)(a) 

Sampling of Chlorine in Condenser Cooling Water Discharge at Outfall 001 
Year Days of Chlorination 

(2 hrs/day) 
Continuous Chlorine Sampling? Days of 

Violation 
1997 Not Reported No X 
1998 Not Reported No X 
1999 Not Reported No X 
2000 Not Reported No X 
2001 Not Reported No X 
2002 260 No 260 
2003 296 No 296 

Jan.-Apr. ‘04 Not Reported No X 
May-Dec. ‘04 210 No 210 

2005 202 No 202 
2006 191 No 191 
2007 165 No 165 
2008 192 No 192 
2009 169 No 169 
2010 207 No 207 
2011 179 No 179 

Jan.-July. ‘12 83 No 83 
TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 2,154 
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Sec. L. Ongoing violation of monitoring and reporting requirements for chlorine 
(TRO) in service cooling water discharge at Outfall 010:  CWA § 1342 and 1994 
Permit, Part (A)(5)(a) 

 
Dates Continuous Chlorine Sampling? Days of Violation 

8/27/98-12/31/98 No 125 
1/1/99-12/31/99 No 365 
1/1/00-12/31/00 No 366 
1/1/01-12/31/01 No 365 
1/1/02-12/31/02 No 365 
1/1/03-12/31/03 No 365 
1/1/04-12/31/04 No 366 
1/1/05-12/31/05 No 365 
1/1/06-12/31/06 No 365 
1/1/07-12/31/07 No 365 
1/1/08-12/31/08 No 366 
1/1/09-12/31/09 No 365 
1/1/10-12/31/10 No 365 
1/1/11-12/31/11 No 365 
1/1/12-7/31/12 No  213 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 5,086 
	  
	  
	  
	  
Sec. M. Ongoing violation of permit condition requiring an approved Annual 
Environmental Monitoring Program carried out under the oversight of the PATC: 
CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Part (A)(8)(b)-(e) 

 
Dates Approved Environmental Monitoring 

Program? 
Days of Violation 

1/1/02-12/31/02 No 365 
1/1/03-12/31/03 No 365 
1/1/04-12/31/04 No 366 
1/1/05-12/31/05 No 365 
1/1/06-12/31/06 No 365 
1/1/07-12/31/07 No 365 
1/1/08-12/31/08 No 366 
1/1/09-12/31/09 No 365 
1/1/10-12/31/10 No 365 
1/1/11-12/31/11 No 365 
1/1/12-7/31/12 No  213 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 3,865 
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Sec. N. Ongoing violation of permit condition requiring collection and reporting of 

benthic monitoring data: CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Parts (A)(1)(h) and 
(A)(8)(d) and Part I.D. of the Marine Environmental Monitoring Program 

   
Dates Performed Benthic 

Monitoring? 
Days of Violation Performed Transect 

Monitoring? 
Days of 

Violation 
2000 No 2 No 4 
2001 No 2 No 4 
2002 No 2 No 4 
2003 No 2 No 4 
2004 No 2 No 4 
2005 No 2 No 4 
2006 No 2 No 4 
2007 No 2 No 4 
2008 No 2 No 4 
2009 No 2 No 4 
2010 No  2 No 4 
2011 No 2 No 4 
2012 No 1 No 2 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 69 
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
Sec. O: Ongoing violation of permit conditions for protection of fish from gas bubble 
disease: CWA § 1342 and 1994 Permit, Parts (A)(2)(e) and (f) 

 
Year Barrier Net in 

Place? 
Average Dissolved Nitrogen Saturation 

Level of < 115%?  
Days of Violation 

(Apr.-Nov. of each year) 
2000 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2001 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2002 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2003 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2004 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2005 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2006 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2007 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2008 No Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2009 No  Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2010 No  Not Monitored or Reported 244 
2011 No  Not Monitored or Reported 244 

2012 (Apr.1-
July 31) 

No  Not Monitored or Reported 122 

TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 3,050 
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  TOTAL: COMBINED TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION 
Exhibit Section Days of Violation Penalty per Section 

A 220 $5,500,000 
B 21 $525,000 
C 3 $75,000 
D 47 $1,175,000 
E 6,545 $163,625,000 
F 41 $1,025,000 
G 2,793 $69,825,000 
H 21 $525,000 
I 6,545 $163,625,000 
J 2,793 $69,825,000 
K 2,154 $53,850,000 
L 5,086 $127,150,000 
M 3,865 $96,625,000 
N 69 $1,725,000 
O 3,050 $76,250,000 

COMBINED TOTAL DAYS OF VIOLATION: 33,253 
Penalty per day of violation: $25,000 

TOTAL PENALTY FOR ALL VIOLATIONS: $831,325,000 
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Boston Edison

Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station
Rocky Hill Road

PlVmouth, Massachusetts 02360

E. T. Boulette, PhD
Senior Vice President - Nuclear October 25, 1995

5.95.088

Mr. Kevin McSweeney, Chief
Compliance Branch
U. S. Environmental Protection Agency .: ,-, ,,r ''

J.F.K. Federal Building
Boston, MA 02203

Attn: Ms. Olga Vergara

Re: NPDES Permit Renewal Application
Pilgrim Station

Dear Mr. McSweeney:

ln accordance with the Consolidated Permits Regulations under Title 40, Code of
Federal Regulations, Parts 122, 123, 124 and 125 (Revised July 1, 1994), Boston
Edison is applying for renewal of our National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) Permit under the Clean Water Act using Forms 1 and 2C of the consolidated
permits application forms at Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station (NPDES #MA0003557).
Comments are noted below:

1) Similar to Boston Edison Company's previous permit application in 1990 for
our current Pilgrim Station NPDES Permit, the following requests and
information are provided regarding this renewal application:

A. Outfalls 001 (Condenser Cooling Water), 002 (Thermal Backwash), and
010 (Plant Service Cooling Water) are once-through discharge points
whose sole source of water is the Cape Cod Bay. Therefore, we believe
that they should be classified as identical outfalls. Outfalls 003 (lntake
Screen Wash) and 008 (Sea Foam Suppression) utilize Cape Cod Bay
water and/or Plymouth town water stored as Pilgrim Fire Water. For the
pollutants listed in Parts B and C of ltem V, we believe that, except for
ambient levels, they are generally not present for these discharge points.
Therefore, we would like the sampling requirements for these pollutants, at
these outfalls, generally suspended. lt is also requested that sampling/
analysis be waived for BOD, COD, TOC, TSS and ammonia at 001' 002,
003, 008 and 010 outfalls because they are non-process industrial
discharge whose water source is classified as SA quality or potable water
and are, therefore, not expected to influence these parameters.



	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Mr. Kevin McSweeneY
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
October 25, 1995
Page Two

2)

B. For outfall numbers 001, 002, 003, 008 and 010, limited analyses were
performed. For outfall number 001, the discharge is only treated with
chlorine which is required to be monitored and not exceed 0.1 ppm TRC.
Similarly, nothing is chemicatly added to OO2 or 008, only sodium
thiosulfate is added to 003 as a dechlorination agent, and only chlorine is
added to 010 with chlorination monitoring required to maintain permit limits
of 0.5 ppm daily average and 1.0 ppm daily maximum TRC, prior to mixing
with condenser cooling waters. Analyses for cobalt, iron and titanium were
performed for outfall numbers 001, 002 and 010 because there was a
possibility of these constituents being present. An analysis for sulfate was
performed for outfall number 003 because of the sodium thiosulfate
addition. Protocol references and sampling strategies are noted in
Attachment A.

C. For all outfalls in ltem V Parts B and C, we have marked an "X" in the
"believed present" or "believed absent" column for pollutant.

D. All temperature and pH data were taken from actual operating data rather
than from grab samples.

The following changes have been adopted in the permit since the last
application:

A. A modification of the Pilgrim Station NPDES permit was approved and
issued effective August 30, 1994, containing various discharge changes.

B. A letter from EPA to Boston Edison dated June 30, 1995, approved the
use of Tolytriazole, a corrosion inhibitor, in various Pilgrim Station systems.

C. Via telecon between the EPA and Boston Edison on December 16, 1994,
(BECo Telecon #4.94.038), approval was granted to use Pilgrim Station
storm drain #007 for the intermittent discharge of untreated seawater from
the condenser scavenger tank.

Boston Edison requests that the five storm drains, Outfalls 004, 005, 006,
007, and a miscellaneous storm drain, be covered under the NPDES General
Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Industrial Activity (Permit
No. MAROOOOOO) upon expiration of the current NPDES permit. The
Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection has formally
determined that the storm water discharges at the facility can be covered
under the General Permit per the September 11, 1995, letter from Paul
Hogan (Attachment B). Two days prior to expiration of the current NPDES
p.*it, a Notice of Intent (NOl) will be submitted to EPA per Part ll of the
Preface of the General Permit.

3)



	  

Mr. Kevin McSweeney
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
October 25, 1995
Page Three

A. The miscellaneous storm drain located at the boat launch between Outfalls
006 and 007 was noted during a recent site visit. lt drains a small portion
of the facility which is similar to the drainage areas for Outfalls 004, 005,
006 and 007. Stormwater runoff from the miscellaneous outfall is
expected, therefore, to be similar to runoff from the other four outfalls.

4) The impacts associated with the Pilgrim Station 316(a) and 316(b)
demonstration document (July 1975) and supplement (September 1977),
submitted in conformance with Federal Water Pollution Control Act (The
Clean Water Act), have not changed significantly.

5) Pilgrim Station discharges in the coastal zone comply with the policies of the
Massachusetts approved coastal management program and will be
conducted in a manner consistent with such policies.

I trust that these additional comments will meet your requirements and that our
application is complete.

lf you have any questions, please contact Mr. Robert D. Anderson of my staff at
(s08) 830-7935. .-J:-') , ,tll:- ( ScLt LLY*I

E. T. Boulette, PhD
Senior Vice President - Nuclearcc: Mr. Paul Hogan

Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection
Regulatory Branch - 7th Floor
One Winter Street
Boston. MA 02108

Mr. Rick Zeroka
Massachusetts Coastal Zone Management
100 Cambridge Street, Floor 20
Boston. MA02202

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Region I

475 Allendale Road
King of Prussia, PA 19406

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Attn: Document Control Desk
Washington, DC 20555

Senior Resident Inspector, Pilgrim Station
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COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
  
PLYMOUTH, SS                                                                                        LAND 

COURT 
                                                                                                                        
        DEPARTMENT OF 
                   THE TRIAL COURT 
       
        CIVIL ACTION NO. 
        13 MISC 479028-RBF 
 
__________________________________________ 
CHRISTINE A. BOSTEK et al.   ) 
       )                     
                                                                            ) 
                                             Plaintiffs,               ) 
                                                                                 )                                  
       )  
v.                                                                           ) 
                                                                            ) 
ENTERGY NUCLEAR GENERATING               ) 
CORPORATION et al.    ) 

) 
        )                                                                          
                                             Defendants.       )         
__________________________________________) 

 

AFFIDAVIT OF E.PINE DUBOIS IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFS’ OPPOSITION TO 
DEFENDANT ENTERGY’S MOTION TO DISMISS PLAINTIFFS’ FIRST 

AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR LACK OF STANDING. 
 

I, E. Pine duBois, do hereby depose and say as follows: 

1. My name is E. Pine duBois.   I live at 93 Elm St., Kingston, Massachusetts and 

have lived at this location for 19 years. I own my home.  I have lived in Kingston 

for 39 years.   

2. Since 1999, I have been the executive director of the Jones River Watershed 

Association, Inc. (JRWA) in Kingston, Massachusetts. Previously, I was employed 

as conservation agent for the Town of Hingham.  I have served as a volunteer 

Karen
Typewritten Text
Exhibit C
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member of the Town of Kingston Conservation Commission, the Open Space 

Committee, and the Green Energy Committee. I received the Activist of the Year 

award from the Environmental League of Massachusetts twice. Since 1981, I have 

regularly attended local, state and national conferences and training sessions on a 

range of environmental issues including land use planning, climate change, 

fisheries, and ecosystem protection. 

3. JRWA’s mission is to protect, enhance and restore natural resources in 

Southeastern Massachusetts, emphasizing the Jones River and Cape Cod Bay and 

encouraging stewardship of our regional environment through science, advocacy, 

and education.  

4. The health of the Jones River depends on the health of Cape Cod Bay. The Jones 

River is the largest river that drains to Cape Cod Bay.  The mouth of Jones River is 

approximately eight miles from the Pilgrim Nuclear Power Station (Pilgrim).  Fish 

that use the Jones River for annual migration to spawning grounds pass along the 

shoreline of Cape Cod Bay in front of Pilgrim. 

5. Over the last 33 years, I have devoted thousands of volunteer hours to protect and 

restore the ecology of the Jones River and Cape Cod Bay. My life avocation 

centers on carrying out this work.   I spend a most of my time outside and on or 

near the Jones River and Cape Cod Bay, which I have done for 29 years. 

6.  I have reviewed hundreds of environmental reports and impact statements for 

proposed residential, commercial, and industrial development projects in 

Southeastern Massachusetts. 
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7. I understand that Kingston is one of the seven towns most likely to be impacted by 

exposure to radiation from Pilgrim. 

8. I understand that studies and scientific data show increases in radiation-linked 

diseases in people living and working close to Pilgrim.   

9.  I understand that the effects of radiation exposure are cumulative, that 

radionuclides released from Pilgrim include substances that will remain active in 

the local environment for hundreds of years, and that these substances can bio-

accumulate in the environment.  

10. JRWA’s office is located at Jones River Landing on the estuary of the Jones River 

in Kingston.  Here, I have personally witnessed rising sea levels and the impact of 

Nor’easters on Jones River and the Cape Cod Bay shoreline, including the Pilgrim 

site. 

11. I have worked with the Town of Plymouth on various ecological issues impacting 

Plymouth Harbor, Kingston and Cape Cod Bay.  Recently, I collaborated with the 

Town on efforts to evaluate water quality along the coastlines.  I have also worked 

with the Eel River Watershed Association, the Nature Conservancy and Wildlands 

Trust of SE Mass, and the International Whale and Dolphin Society, all with 

missions and offices in Plymouth and each working on protecting the ecology and 

marine life of the area. 

12. For over 20 years I served Kingston with the “Civil Defense” and later, KEMA, to 

address Emergency Planning in the event of an accident at Pilgrim. In the early 

80’s I maintained a Ham radio and dosimeter station on my farm in Kingston for  

the benefit of what is now called MEMA (Mass Emergency Management Agency) 
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13. My interests in the ecology of the Jones River watershed and Cape Cod Bay, and 

my personal health, safety, and welfare could be harmed by the continued 

operation of Pilgrim and ISFSI.  I base my concern on the information described 

here, my personal knowledge of the risks of nuclear power production, and from 

reading official government and industry reports. 

Pilgrim’s Cooling Water Intake System 

14. In about 1991, I became aware that Pilgrim’s once through cooling water system 

(CWIS) was impacting the ecology of the Jones River and Cape Cod Bay. I was 

informed by staff members of DMF (division of Marine Fisheries) and others that 

Pilgrim had (again) killed a large number of the rainbow smelt, and other fish that 

spawn in the Jones River, including over 9,000 rainbow smelt in 1994, over 41,000 

river herring in 1995, and over 2,000 alewife in 2012.  

15. I have reviewed numerous environmental reports submitted by Entergy to state and 

federal regulators.  This includes Entergy’s reports submitted to regulators on 

marine monitoring and monthly pollution discharge reports for ground and surface 

water.  

16. These reports show that Pilgrim discharges pollutants to the environment, 

including the groundwater and the surface water of Cape Cod Bay as part of its 

routine operations.   

17. The impacts of CWIS operations include impingement and entrainment of marine 

life, as described in the report Licensed to Kill, which can be found at 

http://www.beyondnuclear.org/storage/ltk_full.pdf. 
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18. Pilgrim’s CWIS uses up to 510 million gallons per day of seawater from Cape Cod 

Bay to cool equipment and condense steam produced for electricity generation.  

19. Pilgrim discharges cooling water that is up to 32⁰F hotter than the temperature of 

the Bay. Pilgrim also conducts periodic thermal backwashes about four times a 

year discharging water up to 120⁰F hotter than the Bay.  

20. Many marine animals occur in Cape Cod Bay for at least part of their lifecycle, 

including threatened and endangered species, such as North Atlantic Right Whales, 

sturgeon and sea turtles.   

21. Pilgrim’s withdrawal of water from Cape Cod Bay via the CWIS results in 

entrainment and impingement of marine life. 

22. I have reviewed reports from the Massachusetts Department of Health showing 

that since 2007 radionuclides have been leaking from Pilgrim to the groundwater.  

http://www.mass.gov/eohhs/gov/departments/dph/programs/environmental-

health/exposure-topics/radiation/environmental-monitoring.html 

Pilgrim’s Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation 

23. The attached map shows the location of the Plymouth-Carver Sole Source Aquifer, 

this map is from the US EPA website, and attachment 1 hereto is a true and 

accurate copy. 

24. I have reviewed Entergy’s Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) 

plans on file at the Town of Plymouth, Department of Inspectional Services (DIS), 

and information on the ISFSI and wetlands alterations at Pilgrim submitted to the 

Town under the Wetlands Protection Act. These plans show that the edge of the 

haul path of the ISFSI is 106.5 feet from mean low water of Cape Cod Bay. I 
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observed on the plans that the ISFSI includes the following components that are 

physically touching each other: Transfer Slab, Haul Path, Approach Slab, and 

Concrete Pad. I also observed that the plans refer to drainage and a storm water 

runoff system.  

25. I have attended numerous meetings held by the Town of Plymouth, the NRC and 

have met with state and federal officials to discuss the impacts of Pilgrim and the 

ISFSI on the environment. 

26. For approximately 10 years, I have studied and observed climate changes and 

models predicting climate change Plymouth, Kingston, and surrounding region. I 

have also researched issues relating to the potential impacts of climate change on 

the siting and operation of the ISFSI.   

27. Because Pilgrim faces northeast, it is vulnerable to the worst coastal storms. I 

believe climate change may impact the ability of the ISFSI and Pilgrim to operate 

safely.  

28. I obtained the images attached hereto as Attachments 2 and 3, which show the 

location of Pilgrim in relation to Cape Cod Bay. These are true and accurate copies 

of Google maps upon which I overlayed words and images. 

29. There is a range of predictions about sea level rise at the Pilgrim site. I believe that 

Entergy designed and sited the ISFSI using outdated estimates of sea level rise at 

the Pilgrim site. Current science shows sea level rise could be much greater at the 

Pilgrim site than the estimate that Entergy used in the design and siting of the 

ISFSI, which is unsupported by current science.  
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30. Attachment 4 is a true and accurate copy of an image I obtained from GoogleEarth.  

The red line points to the approximate location of the ISFSI (in blue/white).  

31. I have researched the duration of spent nuclear fuel storage at Pilgrim and the 

potential environmental impacts therefrom.  This includes reviewing the NRC’s 

draft EIS for nuclear waste storage. The NRC evaluated the environmental impacts 

of continued storage in three timeframes commencing once the licensed life of the 

reactor ends: short term storage, long term storage and indefinite storage.  My 

understanding is that Pilgrim’s short-term storage date ends in 2092 and the long 

term storage date ends in 2232.  As I understand it, this means that the spent 

nuclear fuel could be stored at Pilgrim for anywhere from 88 years to indefinitely.  

32. I believe that the potential impacts and risks of short term, long term, and 

indefinite storage of spent nuclear fuel at Pilgrim, and Pilgrim’s continued 

operations, have not been adequately assessed in light of new science to take into 

account climate change information, including potential sea level rise and greater 

influence of storms. 

33. I was present at a 2014 public meeting in Plymouth when Entergy was asked to 

state what estimate of sea level rise over 100 years was used to design and site the 

ISFSI.  The Entergy representative said design and siting was based on an 

estimated 7-inch sea level rise over 100 years, similar to what he said had occurred 

in the past 100 years.   

34.  In contrast to Entergy’s prediction of a 7-inch sea level rise at the Pilgrim site over 

100 years, it is my understanding that current scientific evidence indicates that the 

sea level rise in the Plymouth area will be greater than 2 feet, and could be more 
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than 6 feet in 100 years, (and has been more than 9 inches in the last century.)  I 

understand that the Plymouth area will experience sea level rise at a faster rate than 

the global average.  I understand that the most conservative estimate for sea level 

rise by 2100 globally is now 2.5 feet. 

35. Based on my research and knowledge, I am concerned that, if spent nuclear fuel 

continues to be stored at Pilgrim for anywhere from 88 years to indefinitely, sea 

level rise could have catastrophic impacts on the ability of the ISFSI to function 

properly.   I am also concerned that the safety of Pilgrim’s continued operations 

may be compromised by climate change impacts that were not considered when 

Pilgrim was built. 

36. I understand from NRC statements that that once Pilgrim’s spent nuclear fuel is 

placed on the ISFSI concrete pad, it would be difficult, if not impossible to further 

raise the pad due to previous construction limitations. Even if it were raised up, it 

may not resolve all the vulnerabilities including those associated with climate 

change and sea level rise. 

Lessons from Fukushima 

37. I have reviewed the NRC’s Order EA 12 049, which as I understand, ordered 

Pilgrim to implement certain safety improvements in light of the nuclear accident 

at Fukushima.  

38. On May 9, 2014 Entergy filed for approval from the Plymouth Conservation 

Commission to conduct activities to comply with EA-12 049 including installing a 

back up pump and generator in case Pilgrim loses off-site power. I am concerned 

that these measures are inadequate to address the risks identified in EA-12 049 in 
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part because of Pilgrim’s location on the shoreline and vulnerability to climate 

change impacts and coastal storms. 

39. I am concerned that the continued operation of Pilgrim and the siting and operation 

of the ISFSI will cause harm to my health, safety and welfare, and the environment. 

40. My interest in my health, safety, welfare and the environment will be harmed 

because, during its operations, Pilgrim will continue to release radiation in the 

environment and will continue to present a risk of a Fukushima type accident, and 

the ISFSI siting and operation also releases radiation and presents a risk of a 

nuclear accident. 

41. I believe the Town of Plymouth should require a special permit for the ISFSI to 

assess and address the impacts of the ISFSI on my health, safety, welfare and on 

the environment, which I serve to protect. 

42. I believe that Plymouth’s failure to require a special permit for the ISFSI 

eliminates any objective review, and harms my ability to take measures to prevent 

or mitigate the harm and risks presented by Pilgrim’s continued operations and the 

ISFSI, including harm to my health, safety and welfare and the environment from 

the effects of radiation exposure that is (instant as well as) cumulative.  

43. A member of my staff created, under my supervision, two maps plotting distances 

of Plaintiffs’ homes from Pilgrim. True and accurate copies of these maps are 

Attachments 5 and 6 to this Affidavit.  

44. Attachment 7 to this affidavit is photograph from the internet obtained by a 

member of my staff under my supervision showing the Pilgrim Nuclear Power 

Plant.   
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45.  I found in my study of Pilgrim files that the thermal plume from the cooling water 

intake and discharge system can be expected to extend 5 square miles off shore. I 

have recently also become aware of Landsat images  (see Attachment 8) to this 

affidavit) that show a distinct plume entering the bay from Pilgrim. I am working 

to understand and track the Landsat photos so that we can better understand the 

extent and likely impact of the plume 

Signed this 8th day of June 2014. 

 

 

 



5/30/14 2:24 PMPlymouth/Carver Sole Source Aquifer | Drinking Water in New England | US EPA

Page 1 of 1http://www.epa.gov/region1/eco/drinkwater/plymcarv.html

Last updated on May 5, 2014

http://www.epa.gov/region1/eco/drinkwater/plymcarv.html

Plymouth/Carver

See Federal Register Notice for further information about the Designated Sole Source Aquifer Area.
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Plymouth:

Mary Farrell 1 Lake Shore Ave., 02360

Norman B. Pierce 166 Morgan Rd., 02360

Non-Plymouth:

Matthew C. Patrick 24 Collins Rd., 02536

Rosanne Shapiro 339 Leightns Ln., 02645

Bruce Taub 42 Captain Linnell Rd., 02653

Susan Carpenter 45 Riverdale South, 02660

Margaret Stevens 33 Wing Rd., 02559

Susan Phelan 179 Plum St., 02668

Sarah Thacher Dennis, MA

Arthur Dickinson 56 Hillcrest Dr., 02645

Elaine Dickinson 56 Hillcrest Dr., 02645

Kark Oakes 21 Heritage Dr., 02657

Doug Long 19 Pine Ridge Ln., 02653

Mary Lampert 148 Washington St., 02332

Massachusetts Residents

Entergy Waterways License Application Number W14-4157 for Pilgrim 

Nuclear Power Station, Plymouth, Massachusetts
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